
   
 

 
AGENDA ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 

1 
 

  

 

AGENDA 

 
Regular Meeting of Community Advisory Committee 

San Diego Community Power (SDCP) 
 

October 12, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

 
City of San Diego Metropolitan Operations Complex (MOC II) Auditorium  

9192 Topaz Way, San Diego, CA 92123 
 

Alternate Location: 
7354 Eads Avenue, San Diego, CA 92037 

 
The meeting will be held in person at the above date, time and location. Community Advisory 
Committee (CAC) Members and members of the public may attend in person.  Under certain 
circumstances, CAC Members may also attend and participate in the meeting virtually pursuant 
to the Brown Act (Gov. Code § 54953). As a convenience to the public, SDCP provides a call-in 
option and internet-based option for members of the public to virtually observe and provide public 
comments at its meetings.  Additional details on in-person and virtual public participation are 
below. Please note that, in the event of a technical issue causing a disruption in the call-in option 
or internet-based option, the meeting will continue unless otherwise required by law, such as 
when a CAC Member is attending the meeting virtually pursuant to certain provisions of the Brown 
Act. 
 
Note: Any member of the public may provide comments to the Community Advisory Committee 
(CAC) on any agenda item. When providing comments to the CAC, it is requested that you provide 
your name and city of residence for the record.  Commenters are requested to address their 
comments to the CAC as a whole through the Chair. Comments may be provided in one of the 
following manners: 

1. Providing Oral Comments During Meeting. Anyone attending in person desiring to 
DGGUHVV�WKH�&$&�LV�DVNHG�WR�ILOO�RXW�D�VSHDNHU¶V�VOLS�DQG�SUHVHQW�LW�WR�WKH�&$&�&KDLU�RU�
the Secretary. To provide remote comments during the meeting, join the Zoom meeting 
by computer, mobile phone, or dial-in number. On Zoom video conference by computer 
RU�PRELOH�SKRQH��XVH�WKH�³5DLVH�+DQG´�IHDWXUH��7KLV�ZLOO�QRWLI\�WKH�PRGHUDWRU�WKDW�\RX�
wish to speak during a specific item on the agenda or during non-agenda Public 
Comment. Members of the public will not be shown on video but will be able to speak 
when called upon. If joining the meeting using the Zoom dial-in number, you can raise 
your hand by pressing *9. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. 

2. Written Comments. Written public comments must be submitted prior to the start of the 
meeting by using this (web form). Please indicate a specific agenda item when submitting 
your comment. All written comments received prior to the meeting will be provided to the 
CAC members in writing. In the discretion of the Chair, the first ten (10) submitted comments 
shall be stated into the record of the meeting. Comments read at the meeting will be limited 

https://forms.office.com/r/mtVacFv947


   
 

 
AGENDA ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 

2 
 

  

to the first 400 words. Comments received after the start of the meeting will be collected, 
sent to the CAC members in writing, and be part of the public record. 

If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the CAC, please provide it via 
info@sdcommunitypower.org, who will distribute the information to the Members.  

The public may participate using the following remote options: 

Teleconference Meeting Webinar 

https://zoom.us/j/93647500600  

Telephone (Audio Only)  

(669) 900-6833 or (253) 215-8782 | Webinar ID: 936 4750 0600 

 

WELCOME 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT  

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS 

ITEMS TO BE WITHDRAWN OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Opportunity for members of the public to address the CAC on any items not on the agenda 
but within the jurisdiction of the CAC. Members of the public may provide a comment in 
either manner described above. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters are approved by one motion without discussion unless a CAC member requests 
a specific item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion. A member of the 
public may comment on any item on the Consent Calendar in either manner described 
above. 
 
1. Approval of September 14, 2023 CAC Meeting Minutes 

 
2. Update on Marketing and Public Relations  

 
3. Update on Customer Operations  

  
4. Update on Regulatory and Legislative Affairs  

  

mailto:info@sdcommunitypower.org
https://zoom.us/j/93647500600


   
 

 
AGENDA ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 

3 
 

  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
The following items call for discussion or action by the CAC.  

 
5. Update on Energy Proposal Evaluation Criteria Revision 

 
Recommendation: Receive and File the Update on Energy Proposal Evaluation Criteria 
Revision 

 
6. Update on Net Billing Tariff 

 
Recommendation: Receive and File the Update on Net Billing Tariff 

 
7. Update on Existing Net Energy Metering Policy 

 
Recommendation: Receive and File the Update on Existing Net Energy Metering Policy 

 
8. Update on Programs Ad-Hoc Committee 

 
Recommendation: Receive and File the Update on the Programs Ad-Hoc Committee 
 

9. Update on Community and Equity Ad-Hoc Committee 
 

Recommendation: Receive and File the Update on Community and Equity Ad-Hoc 
Committee 
 

10. Update on CAC Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Work Plan  
 
Recommendation: Receive and File the Update on Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Work Plan 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF POTENTIAL AGENDA ITEMS FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETINGS 
There are two ways that the CAC may bring items to the attention of the Board: 
 
1. Standing Board Agenda Item: CAC Report. The CAC report may be a standing item on 

 the Board agenda, in which the CAC Chair or CEO reports on updates related to a 
 recent CAC meeting. Consistent with the Brown Act, items raised during the CAC report 
 may not result in extended discussion or action by the Board unless agendized for a 
 future meeting.  

 
2. Suggesting Board Agenda Items: The CAC may suggest agenda items for a Board of 

 Directors meeting agenda. Such agenda items would allow extended discussion or 
 action by the Board. These must have prior approval of the SDCP Chief Executive 
 Officer and the Chair of the Board of Directors to be added onto 4 the agenda. If  

approval is provided, staff must be given at least 5 days before the date of the Board 
 meeting to work with the CAC to draft any memos and materials necessary. 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 



   
 

 
AGENDA ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 

4 
 

  

Committee Members may briefly provide information to other members and the public. There 
is to be no discussion or action taken on comments made by Committee Members unless 
authorized by law. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Availability of Committee Documents 
Copies of the agenda and agenda packet are available at 
https://sdcommunitypower.org/resources/meeting-notes/. Late-arriving documents related to a 
CAC meeting item which are distributed to a majority of the Members prior to or during the CAC 
meeting are available for public review as required by law. Public records, including agenda-
related documents, can instead be requested electronically at info@sdcommunitypower.org or by 
mail to SDCP at PO Box 12716, San Diego, CA 92112. The documents may also be posted at 
the above website. Such public records are also available for inspection, by appointment, at San 
Diego Community Power, 2488 Historic Decatur Road, Suite 250, San Diego, CA 92106. Please 
contact info@sdcommunitypower.org to arrange an appointment.  

mailto:info@sdcommunitypower.org


MINUTES ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
1 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER (SDCP) 

DRAFT 
 

City of San Diego Metropolitan Operations Complex (MOC II) Auditorium 
9192 Topaz Way 

San Diego, CA 92123 
 

MINUTES 
September 14, 2023 

 
 
The Committee minutes are prepared and ordered to correspond to the Committee Agenda. 
Agenda Items can be taken out of order during the meeting.  
 
The Agenda Items were considered in the order presented. 

 
 

WELCOME 
 
Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego) called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Committee Member Webb (Imperial Beach) announced she was attending virtually under the just 
cause provision of AB 2449 and there were no individuals over the age of 18 present in the room 
with her. 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego), Vice Chair Harris (La Mesa), Secretary 

Cazares (La Mesa), Committee Member Scofield (Chula Vista), Committee 
Member Jahns (Encinitas), Committee Member Hammond (Encinitas), 
Committee Member Webb (Imperial Beach), Committee Member Castañeda 
(National City), Committee Member Emerson (National City), and Committee 
Member Andersen (County of San Diego) 

 
ABSENT: Committee Member Sclafani (Chula Vista) and Committee Member Price (City 

of San Diego) 
 
VACANT:  Seat 10 (Imperial Beach), Seat 12 (County of San Diego) 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego) led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
 
Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego) acknowledged the Kumeyaay Nation and all the original 
stewards of the land. 



MINUTES ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
2 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego) introduced the following new SDCP staff members: 
 
Jushaun Jamieson, Public Outreach Coordinator 
Adana Martinez, Public Outreach Coordinator 
 
 
ITEMS TO BE WITHDRAWN OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no items withdrawn or reordered on the agenda. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
(Items 1 through 4) 
 

1. Approval of July 13, 2023 CAC Meeting Minutes 
 
Approved. 
 

2. Update on Marketing and Public Relations  
 
Received and filed. 
 

3. Update on Customer Operations  
 
Received and filed. 
 

4. Update on Regulatory and Legislative Affairs  
 
Received and filed. 
 
 
ACTION: Motioned by Committee Member Webb (Imperial Beach) and seconded by Committee 
Member Scofield (Chula Vista) to approve Consent Calendar Items 1 through 4. The motion 
carried by the following vote:    
 
Vote: 10-0  

Yes: Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego), Vice Chair Harris (La Mesa), Secretary Cazares 
(La Mesa), Committee Member Scofield (Chula Vista), Committee Member Jahns 
(Encinitas), Committee Member Hammond (Encinitas), Committee Member Webb 
(Imperial Beach), Committee Member Castañeda (National City), Committee Member 
Emerson (National City), and Committee Member Andersen (County of San Diego) 

No: None 
Abstained: None 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 



MINUTES ± COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ± SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
3 

 
5. Update on Regional Energy Network Progress  

 
Director of Programs Santulli and Senior Program Manager Tran provided a PowerPoint 
presentation on the Regional Energy Network (REN) progress, highlighting the San Diego REN 
(SDREN) formation timeline, governance structure, and core values, the draft programs: 
workforce education and training, commercial, residential, public, and codes and standards, the 
sectors and target participants of the draft programs, and the next steps.  
 
Following Committee questions and comments, no action was taken. 
 

6. Update on Programs Ad-Hoc Committee 
 
Committee Member Emerson (National City) provided an update on the efforts and progress of 
the Programs Ad Hoc Subcommittee.  
 
Following Committee questions and comments, no action was taken. 
 

7. Update on Community and Equity Ad-Hoc Committee 
 
Vice Chair Harris (La Mesa) provided an update on the efforts and progress of the Community 
and Equity Ad Hoc Subcommittee.  
 
Following Committee questions and comments, no action was taken. 
 

8. Update on CAC Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Work Plan  
 
Community Engagement Manager Crespo provided an update on the various goals and initiatives 
of the CAC Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.   
 
Following Committee questions and comments, no action was taken. 
 
 
DISCUSSION OF POTENTIAL AGENDA ITEMS FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS 
 
There were no potential agenda items for Board of Directors meetings. 
 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Committee Members made announcements and reported on various events taking place in the 
member jurisdictions. No action was taken. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Vasilakis (City of San Diego) adjourned the meeting at 6:58 p.m. 
 



 

 

 
SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 

Staff Report ± Item 2 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
To:       San Diego Community Power Community Advisory Committee 

From:   Jen Lebron, Director of Public Affairs 
 
Via:  Karin Burns, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject:  Update on Marketing and Public Relations 
 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive and file update on marketing and public relations activities for San Diego 
Community Power. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
San Diego Community Power (SDCP) has engaged in a variety of public relations, 
marketing, and community outreach activities to drive awareness, spark community 
engagement, and maintain high customer enrollment. 
 
ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Public Affairs team had a very busy September as it ramped up its in-person 
engagement efforts with the expansion of its Community Engagement division and 
prepared a variety of SDCP representatives for speaking engagements that reached 
thousands of people in San Diego and beyond.  
 
Recent and Upcoming Public Engagement Events 
 
Sept. 9, 2023 ± Clairemont Family Day 
Sept. 9, 2023 - (QYLURQPHQWDO�+HDOWK�&RDOLWLRQ�6HPLOODV�³3ODQWLQJ�6HHGV�IRU�WKH�)XWXUH´�
Community Celebration 
Sept. 14, 2023 ± Cause Conference San Diego 
Sept. 14, 2023 ± Innovation Day 2023 
Sept. 15, 2023 ± NEXUS Climate Action Summit 
Sept. 16, 2023 ± Green Summit 
Sept. 16, 2023 ± San Diego Wave Fútbol Club game 
Sept. 23, 2023 ± Coastal Cleanup Day 
Sept. 27, 2023 ± San Diego Regional Chamber of Commerce Circle of Influence Mixer 
Sept. 28, 2023 ± :RPHQ¶V�9HQWXUH�6XPPLW 
Oct. 1, 2023 ± Paddle for Clean Water 
Oct. 3, 2023 ± Cleantech San Diego: Holding Power 



 

 

Oct. 4, 2023 ± California Clean Air Day with Power100 Champion Illumina 
Oct. 5, 2023 ± Encinitas Small Business Resource Fair 
Oct. 7, 2023 ± &DVD�)HVW�������&DVD�)DPLOLDU¶V���th Anniversary Celebration 
Oct. 11, 2023 ± North San Diego County Chamber of Commerce Regional Connect 
Oct. 14, 2023 ± (QYLURQPHQWDO�+HDOWK�&RDOLWLRQ¶V�&OHDQ�$LU�Congreso 
Oct. 15, 2023 ± San Diego Wave Fútbol Club game 
Oct. 17, 2023 ± San Diego Regional Chamber of Commerce October Meeting 
Oct. 21, 2023 ± Imperial Beach Sun Coast Farmers Market 
Oct. 21, 2023 ± Beautify Chula Vista 
Oct. 25 and Oct. 26, 2023 ± Tribal EPA & U.S. EPA Region 9 Conference 
Oct. 27, 2023 ± 2023 San Diego Green Building Conference & Expo 
 
Marketing, Communications and Outreach 
 
The Public Affairs team has been working diligently behind the scenes to support 
SURJUDPPDWLF� HIIRUWV� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� ODXQFK�RI� ³6RODU� IRU�2XU�&RPPXQLWLHV´� JUHHQ� WDULII�
programs, a soon-to-be launched electrification education hub, and the rollout for the Net 
Billing Tariff, pending approval from the SDCP Board of Directors. The Public Affairs team 
is working closely with internal and external stakeholders to encourage participation in 
programs and leveraging relationships with community partners to amplify our marketing 
and outreach efforts. 
 
As the weather began to heat up in $XJXVW��6'&3�ODXQFKHG�D�³6WD\�&RRO�	�6DYH�7KLV�
6XPPHU´�FDPSDLJQ�WKDt ran through mid-September. The digital ads will direct viewers 
to visit the SDCP website and teach them energy-saving tips such as the best time of day 
WR�XVH�DSSOLDQFHV�DQG�KRZ�WR�ILQG�³&RRO�=RQHV´�WKDW�RIIHU�IUHH��DLU-conditioned settings 
across the county. 
 
Our social media efforts had direct interactions with more than 26,000 accounts in 
September, largely due to the ³6WD\�&RRO�DQG�6DYH´ campaign. Contributing to the reach 
included our top-performing post, which was an Instagram Reel that gave an easy-to-
understand overview of SDCP. The post was seen more than 1,200 times with a total 
watch time of over four hours. 
 
SDCP is in regular communication with regional media in the spirit of transparency and 
openness with the goal of providing factual, timely information to the public at large. Over 
the past two months, SDCP has engaged with reporters to provide background on stories 
DERXW�WKH�JUHDWHU�HQHUJ\�ODQGVFDSH�LQ�&DOLIRUQLD�DQG�XSGDWH�WKHP�RQ�RXU�RUJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�
activities.  
 
On Oct. 5, the Public Affairs team welcomed Ashley Rodriguez as WKH�DJHQF\¶V�ILUVW�Local 
Government Affairs Manager. This new role VLWV� LQ� WKH� 3XEOLF� $IIDLUV� 'HSDUWPHQW¶V�
Strategic Initiatives Division and LV� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU�VWUHQJWKHQLQJ�6'&3¶V� UHODWLRQVKLSV�
with member agencies at every level. The goal is to provide member agencies with a point 
of contact who is focused on their needs. The Local Government Affairs Manager hire 
FRQFOXGHV� WKH� 3XEOLF� $IIDLUV� 'HSDUWPHQW¶V� KLULQJ� SODQ� IRU� WKH� ����-2024 fiscal year, 
barring a mid-year budget adjustment that would require approval from the SDCP Board 
of Directors. 



 

 

 
The Public Affairs team will continue to develop new strategies, processes and capacity 
over the next several months to conduct more community outreach, expand marketing 
and brand awareness efforts, and provide timely, factual information across multiple 
channels. 
 
AD-HOC COMMITTEE AND/OR SUBCOMITTEE REVIEW 
N/A  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A  



 

 

 

SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
Staff Report ± Item 3 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
To:       San Diego Community Power Community Advisory Committee 

From:   Lucas Utouh, Director of Data Analytics and Account Services 
 
Via:  Karin Burns, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject:  Update on Customer Operations 
 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive and file an update on various customer operations. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Staff will provide regular updates to the Community Advisory Committee centered around 
tracking opt actions (i.e., opt outs, opt ups and opt downs) as well as customer 
engagement metrics. The following is a brief overview of items pertaining to customer 
operations. 
 
ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION 
 
A) Mass Enrollment Update 
 
Phase 4: 
 
Mass enrollment for our Non-Net Energy Metering (NEM) customers in National City and 
Unincorporated County of San Diego is officially complete as of May 3, 2023. As of 
October 5, 2023, SDCP is serving a cumulative total count of 922,306 active accounts 
correlating to 1,083,478 meters. There are 146,401 active accounts already enrolled in 
Unincorporated County of San Diego and 18,327 in National City.  
 
Accounts on Net Energy Metering (NEM) within Phase 4 in National City and County of 
San Diego began enrollment into SDCP service in April 2023 and will continue for the 
next twelve months, coinciding with their true up month through March 2024. Enrolled 
customers will receive 2 post enrollment notices through the mail at their mailing address 
on file within 60 days of their account switching over to SDCP service. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

B) 2023 California Climate Credit 
 
San Diego Community Power¶V�5HVLGHQWLDO�DQG�6PDOO�%XVLQHVV customers will receive 
the California Climate Credit this month (i.e., October 2023) in the amount of $60.70. 
7KH�&DOLIRUQLD�&OLPDWH�&UHGLW�LV�SDUW�RI�&DOLIRUQLD¶V�HIIRUWV�WR�ILJKW�FOLPDWH�FKDQJH and 
SURYLGHV�UDWHSD\HUV�ZLWK�WKHLU�VKDUH�RI�WKH�EHQHILWV�RI�&DOLIRUQLD¶V�&DS-and-Trade 
Program. This credit will be automatically applied to these FXVWRPHUV¶�ELOOV and 
customers do not have to do anything to receive it. However, it should be noted that 
since customer billing cycles vary, not every customer will see the bill credit at the same 
WLPH�LQ�2FWREHU�ௗ 
 
Our website currently denotes a banner under our Billing & Rates webpage reminding 
customers of this credit being applied on their October bills per the snippet below: 
 

 
 

 

C) Customer Participation Tracking 
 
Staff and Calpine have worked together to create a reporting summary of customer 
actions to opt out of SDCP service, opt up to Power100, or opt down from Power100 to 
PowerOn. The below charts summarize these actions accordingly as of October 2nd, 
2023: 
 



 

 

 
*Historical opt outs including inactive accounts as of 10/02/2023. 
  

 



 

 

                         



 

 

 
 
                   
Phase 4 mass enrollment process in National City and Unincorporated County of San 
Diego for Non-Net Energy Metering (NEM) customers is officially completed as of May 
2023. The participation rate for this new phase is fluid and will change as we continue 
with our enrollment of Net Energy Metering (NEM) customers from April 2023 through 
March 2024. In the interim, we are reporting on the opt outs and eligible accounts 
associated with the phase based on those accounts that we have noticed for enrollment 
on a rolling basis as of the reporting month.  
 
 
D) Contact Center Metrics 
 
As anticipated, call volumes began to noticeably increase in August, which was expected 
as customers started noticing bills with summer rates. Consistent with the seasonal 
transition to summer rates as of June 1 where generation rates are generally higher than 
those in Winter, more customer inquiries around higher bills have been fielded and a 
modest uptick in opt outs ensued. With the transition to winter rates effective as of 
November 1st, call volumes are expected to go down. 
 



 

 

The chart below summarizes contact made by customers into our Contact Center broken 
down by month through October 2nd, 2023: 
 

 
 
Similar WR�RWKHU�&&$V¶�VHUYLFH�WHUULWRULHV��we are anticipating the trend of our customers 
FDOOLQJ�LQWR�RXU�&RQWDFW�&HQWHU¶V�,QWHUDFWLYH�9RLFH�5HVSRQVH�(IVR) system tree and being 
able to self-serve their opt actions using the recorded prompts as well as utilizing our 
website for processing opt actions to continue accounting for over 65% of all instances. 
The remaining portion of customer calls are connected to our Customer Service 
Representatives to answer additional questions, assist with account support, or submit 
opt actions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E) Customer Service Email Trends 
  



 

 

 
 
 
As of this latest reporting month, we still have a total of 13 Dedicated Customer Service 
Representatives staffed at our Contact Center and 2 Supervisors. Our robust Quality 
Assurance (QA) procedures are firmly in place to ensure that our customers are getting 
a world-class customer experience when they contact us. 
 
 
AD-HOC COMMITTEE AND/OR SUBCOMITTEE REVIEW 
N/A  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A  



 

   
 

 
SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 

Staff Report ± Item 4 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

To:  San Diego Community Power Community Advisory Committee 

From:   Laura Fernandez, Director of Regulatory & Legislative Affairs 
  Aisha Cissna, Senior Policy Manager 

Stephen Gunther, Senior Regulatory Analyst  
 
Via:  Karin Burns, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject:  Update on Regulatory and Legislative Affairs 
 
Date:   October 12, 2023 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Receive and file update on regulatory and legislative affairs.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Staff will provide regular updates to the Community Advisory Committee regarding 
6'&3¶V�UHJXODWRU\�DQG�OHJLVODWLYH�HQJDJHPHQW�� 
 
ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION 
 

A) Regulatory Updates 
 

Remote Grid Protest 
On September 6, 2023, San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E) submitted an advice 
letter (³AL´) seeking approval by the CPUC of their Remote Grid Standalone Power 
System Addendum Agreement. Remote grids are standalone energy resources 
and infrastructure for permanent energy delivery to customers who would no 
longer be part of the larger distribution grid. Remote grids are intended to serve 
small loads in remote locations where distribution lines are expensive and/or 
difficult to maintain. They can be fueled by renewable resources such as solar 
arrays, non-renewable sources such as propane, or a mixture of both renewable 
and non-renewable resources. 
 
SDCP and CEA (³Joint CCAs´) raised several concerns with the remote grid 
initiative as proposed in the AL by filing a protest to the AL on September 26, 2023. 
The concerns and requests expressed in the protest are as follows: 

x There is no explicit requirement for SDG&E to inform CCAs when they are 
pursuing a remote grid, or any mention of how they will address remote grids in 
CCA service areas.  The CCAs requested that SDG&E secure written concurrence 
from CCAs prior to deploying a remote grid in a CCA service area. 

https://tariff.sdge.com/tm2/pdf/submittals/ELEC_4277-E-A.pdf
https://tariff.sdge.com/tm2/pdf/submittals/ELEC_4277-E-A.pdf


 

   
 

x SDG&E does not explicitly state that this initiative is a pilot but describes the 
UHPRWH�JULG�SURJUDP�DV�D�³SURRI-of-concept".  The CCAs recommended that the 
AL be revised to clarify that the initiative is a pilot and, if future program expansion 
is pursued, that SDG&E be required to file a formal application to allow for more 
robust stakeholder input and Commission review. 

x The number of proposed remote grids and expected size of the customer loads to 
be served do not clearly align with the proposed remote grid initiative load cap. 
The AL should be revised to provide clarification, so the capped size of the pilot is 
unambiguous. 

x SDG&E is proposing to use renewable and/or non-renewable fuels for the remote 
grid initiative at its discretion. To stay on track with meeting state renewable energy 
and climate goals, the CCAs recommended that the remote grid be composed of 
70% renewable energy. 

x The CCAs recommended that SDG&E should clarify that participation in the 
remote grid initiative is based on customer agreement and consent. 

x The CCAs recommended that SDG&E clarify that they will remit generation 
revenues from CCA customers served by remote grids to the CCAs. 

x The CCAs recommended that SDG&E should submit a public report within two 
years of the first remote grid coming online that captures renewables utilized, 
costs, rate impacts, performance, customer participation, and other important 
details. 

x The CCAs recommended that SDG&E should adopt a proactive approach to 
planning for increases in remote grid customer load so that customers do not face 
barriers to electrification or EV adoption. 

 
SDG&E replied to the Joint CCA protest on October 3, 2023, contesting several 
points. The next step in the process is for the CPUC to issue a draft resolution 
which will afford another opportunity for stakeholder comment prior to the CPUC 
adopting a final resolution on the initiative. A draft resolution is expected to be 
UHOHDVHG�VRPHWLPH�LQ�4��������KRZHYHU��WKDW�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�FKDQJH�DW�WKH�&38&¶V�
discretion. 

 
 
 

Net Billing Tariff 8SGDWH�� 0HHWLQJ� ZLWK� &38&� 3UHVLGHQW� $OLFH� 5H\QROGV¶�
 Office to Discuss CCA Customer Billing Presentment Issues 

 
Background 
As presented in the Update on Regulatory and Legislative Affairs during the 
September 14, 2023, meeting of the Community Advisory Committee (see Item 4 
in the agenda packet), on August 2nd, 2023, the CPUC released a proposed 
decision in the net energy metering (NEM) proceeding. This proposed decision 
speaks to several remaining issues including consumer protections, prevailing 
wage requirements for contractors, evaluation principles for the net billing tariff 

https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/AGENDA_PACKET.09.14.2023_SDCP.CAC_.pdf
https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/AGENDA_PACKET.09.14.2023_SDCP.CAC_.pdf


 

   
 

(NBT), successor tariffs for the Virtual Net Energy Metering and Net Energy 
Metering Aggregation tariffs, and customer billing presentment issues. The CPUC 
initially planned to vote on the proposed decision on September 21, 2023, but 
subsequently delayed its vote to October 12, 2023. 
 
Engagement on Customer Billing Presentment Issues 
The proposed decision acknowledges that customers have historically 
experienced  challenges with understanding their net energy metering bills and 
proposed public workshops to review these difficulties for NBT customers.  
 
SDCP and other CCAs submitted opening comments in response to the proposed 
decision, requesting language be added to the decision that would require 
unbundled customer billing issues be explicitly addressed in CPUC-ordered NBT 
billing presentment discussions, as unbundled customer issues are distinct from 
those experienced by IOU customers. To underscore the need for adding this 
language, the Joint CCAs noted that they have successfully collaborated with IOUs 
to develop NEM billing presentment solutions in the past, but one such CPUC-
approved proposal was never implemented. Additionally, the proposed decision 
posits closing the proceeding once the final decision is adopted. In response, the 
Joint CCAs requested that the proceeding remain open to "expediently address 
billing presentment questions that arise during implementation.´ The Joint IOUs 
opposed the Joint CCAV¶ proposals in reply comments, mischaracterizing several 
points that were made. 
 
Subsequently, to further advocate for unbundled NBT customer billing 
presentment needs, SDCP and several other CCAs met with President Alice 
5H\QROGV¶� RIILFH on October 3, 2023. In this meeting, the Joint CCAs further 
described unbundled customer billing issues and reiterated the need for adopting 
WKH�-RLQW�&&$V¶�SURSRsed decision language. 7KH�3UHVLGHQW¶V�2IILFH�appeared to 
be receptive and connected the CCAs with Energy Division staff to continue 
discussing the issues at hand. 
 
A revised proposed decision is anticipated to be released soon, at which point 
SDCP will know whether the Joint &&$V¶�SURSRVDO�ZDV�accepted. 

 
Resource Adequacy (RA) 
 
CalCCA Resource Adequacy Stack Analysis 
 
The Resource Adequacy (RA) program in California is critical for ensuring load 
serving entities (LSE) have sufficient capacity to maintain reliable electric service. 
However, recent market conditions and programmatic challenges have made it 
increasingly difficult for LSEs, including SDCP, to meet their RA obligations and as 
a result face financial penalties that impact ratepayers.  

https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M518/K165/518165415.PDF


 

   
 

 
CalCCA recently examined the RA problem and potential solutions in a stack 
analysis paper entitled, &DOLIRUQLD¶V� &RQVWUDLQHG� 5$� 0DUNHW�� 5DWHSD\HUV� /HIW�
Standing in a Game of Musical Chairs. The stack analysis is a helpful tool in 
understanding and communicating the challenges LSEs face under the realities of 
the current RA framework and market conditions. In short, the analysis finds that, 
³WKH� GHPDQG� IRU� 5$� LQ� &DOLIRUQLD� H[FHHGV� WKH� DYDLODEOH� VXSSO\�� HYHQ� DIWHU�
DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�LPSRUWV�DQG�H[SHFWHG�DGGLWLRQV�RI�UHVRXUFHV�´�7KLV�PDUNHW�VFDUFLW\�
and imbalance in supply and demand has resulted in skyrocketing RA prices. 
 

 
CalCCA Stack Analysis: System RA demand and supply for peak months in 2023 

 

 
CalCCA Stack Analysis: RA supply and prices 

 
&DO&&$¶V stack analysis offers seven interim actions for CPUC consideration to 
help alleviate the current RA problems. SDCP staff will continue to leverage 
&DO&&$¶V� DQDO\VLV� WR� HGXFDWH� SROLF\PDNHUV� RQ� WKH� FKDOOHQJHV� DQG� SRWHQWLDO�
solutions within the RA framework. 

https://cal-cca.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/CalCCA-Stack-Analysis-2023-2026-updated-9_15_23.pdf
https://cal-cca.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/09/CalCCA-Stack-Analysis-2023-2026-updated-9_15_23.pdf


 

   
 

 
New Order Instituting Rulemaking (OIR) to Oversee the RA Program 
 
On October 12, 2023, the CPUC will vote to open a new Order Instituting 
Rulemaking Oversee the Resource Adequacy Program, Consider Program 
Reforms and Refinements, and Establish Forward Resource Adequacy 
Procurement Obligations. This proceeding is the successor to Rulemaking 21-10-
002, which addressed RA topics and reforms over the past two years, and will also 
address forward RA procurement obligations beginning with the 2025 compliance 
year. The following issues are included in the preliminary scope: 
  

x Adoption of Local Capacity Requirements 
x Adoption of Flexible Capacity Requirements  
x Loss of Load Expectation Study and Planning Reserve Margin 
x 24-Hour Slice-of-Day Framework 
x Unforced Capacity Methodology (UCAP) 
x Qualifying Capacity (QC) Counting Conventions 
x Resource Adequacy Compliance and Penalties 
x Coordination with the Integrated Resource Planning (IRP) Proceeding 
x Refinements to the Resource Adequacy Program 

 
A prehearing conference is scheduled for November 17, 2023, and a Scoping 
Memo outlining the issues and proceeding schedule is expected in December 
2023. SDCP staff will work closely with CalCCA to track and engage in this new 
proceeding.  
 
ERRA Forecast Proceeding Update 
 
On October 4, SDCP and CEA jointly filed an opening brief in the ERRA forecast 
to make the following three points:   
 

1. The CPUC should require SDG&E to adopt a forecasted 2024 RA 
sales volume equal to the average of actual RA sales recorded 
between January and June 2023 (567 MW).  

2. For future ERRA Forecast proceedings, the CPUC should direct 
SDG&E to evaluate RA market conditions and historical RA sales to 
develop a forecast of Sold RA.  

3. The CPUC should order SDG&E to revert back to past confidentiality 
designation processes that allow for the publication of current and 
proposed class average bundled rates. 

 
6'*	(¶V�UHIXVDO�WR�IRUHFDVW�5$�VDOHV�DUWLILFLDOO\�UDLVHV�WKH�WRWDO�3&,$�SRUWIROLR�FRVW�
forecast, meaning that all customers, CCA and SDG&E bundled customers alike, 
will pay more upfront in PCIA costs that will ultimately be refunded later. SDCP 

https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M519/K949/519949114.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M519/K949/519949114.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M519/K949/519949114.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M519/K949/519949114.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M520/K522/520522225.PDF


 

   
 

and CEA argue that SDG&E should more accurately forecast PCIA portfolio costs 
to save customers money in the short term and also reduce rate volatility.  

 
The following is the remaining ERRA Forecast proceeding schedule:  

 
Oct.11: Reply Brief 
Oct. 13: October Update  
Oct. 27: Comments on October Update  
Nov. 28: Proposed Decision  
Dec. 14: Final Decision  

 
B) Legislative Update  

 
During the 2023 Legislative Session, SDCP took positions on seven bills. SDCP 
supported each of these bills, other than AB 1373, which SDCP initially opposed and 
ultimately moved to neutral on. The following is a list of these bills, a brief description of 
the bill, and its current status:  
 
1. AB 50 (Enrolled and awaiting Governor signature): Requires timely interconnection of 

customer load. Requires IOUs that energized less than 35% of customers with 
completed applications exceeding 12 months in duration by January 31, 2023, to 
submit a report to the CPUC on or before December 1, 2024, demonstrating that the 
IOU has energized 80% of customers with applications deemed complete as of 
January 31, 2023. The bill would also require each IOU to evaluate and update its 
existing distribution planning processes. To inform the &38&¶V� determination of 
criteria for timely service, the bill would require the CPUC to annually collect certain 
information from each IOU until new reporting requirements are established. 

 
2. AB 643 (Not Active): Would have required the CPUC to submit a report to the 

Legislature on timelines for the interconnection of customer-sited energy generation 
and storage resources. 

 
3. AB 1373 (Enrolled and awaiting Governor signature): Establishes a central 

procurement entity for long lead time resources, among other provisions, which have 
been detailed in past SDCP staff reports.  

 
4. SB 233 (Not Active): This bill would have required the CEC to convene a stakeholder 

workgroup to examine challenges and opportunities associated with using an EV as 
a mobile battery to power a home or building or provide electricity to the electrical grid, 
and required the CEC to submit a report to the Governor and Legislature that includes 
specified information related to the bidirectional capability of EVs and electric vehicle 
service equipment. This bill would have required that, beginning in model year 2030, 
all new electric vehicles sold in California be bidirectional capable, including light-duty 
motor vehicles and school busses, except as exempted by the state board. 

 
5. SB 411 (Enrolled and awaiting Governor signature): This bill would permit use of 

alternate teleconferencing provisions similar to the emergency provisions used during 



 

   
 

the coronavirus state of emergency indefinitely and without regard to a state of 
emergency. This bill originally would have applied to SDCP, however, it was 
subsequently amended to be inapplicable to SDCP and would only apply in a narrow 
set of circumstances.  

 
6. SB 547 (Not Active): This bill would have permitted use of alternate teleconferencing 

provisions similar to the emergency provisions used during the coronavirus state of 
emergency indefinitely and without regard to a state of emergency.  

 
7. SB 619 (Enrolled and awaiting Governor signature): This bill would give utilities the 

option to get CEQA reviews for transmission projects from the CEC instead of the 
CPUC and limit the reviews to 270 days. 

 
 
AD-HOC COMMITTEE AND/OR SUBCOMITTEE REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A 
 



 

 

SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
Staff Report ± Item 5 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

To:  San Diego Community Power Board of Directors 

From:   Kenny Key, Senior Contract Manager, Power Services 
 
Via:  Karin Burns, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject:  Energy Proposal Evaluation Criteria Revision 
 
Date:   October 5, 2023 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and file an update on the proposed revised Energy Proposal Evaluation Criteria 
for future evaluation of long-term, wholesale contracts for purchase of renewable energy 
and capacity. 
 
BACKGROUND 
As SDCP strives to meet its environmental, financial, and regulatory compliance goals 
and requirements, long-term power purchase agreements (PPAs) and Energy Storage 
Service Agreements (ESSAs) are integral components of its energy supply portfolio. 
Long-term PPAs and ESSAs provide developers with the certain revenue stream 
against which they can finance up-front capital requirements, so each long-term PPA or 
ESSA that SDCP signs with a developing facility will underpin a new, incremental 
project.  
 
Long-term PPAs lock in renewable energy supply around which SDCP can build its 
power supply portfolio while also providing power supply cost certainty around which 
SDCP can develop its pro forma financial model. Long-term ESSAs allow SDCP to shift 
more energy supply into peak demand hours as well as provide reliability and resource 
adequacy benefits.  
 
In addition, the California Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS), as modified in 2015 by 
Senate Bill 350, requires that SDCP provide 65% of its RPS-required renewable energy 
from contracts of at least ten years in length. The California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC) also required each Load Serving Entity (LSE) in California to make significant 
long-term purchase commitments for resource adequacy from new, incremental 
facilities in D.21-06-025 and subsequent mid-term reliability decisions. 
 

SDCP will pursue long-term contracts for renewable energy and resource adequacy 
supply predominantly via competitive solicitations processes. These will be similar to 



 

solicitations run in 2022 (Long-Term California RPS-Eligible Renewable Energy RFP) and 
2023 (Long-Term California RPS-Eligible Renewable Energy RFP Request for Offers for 
Standalone Storage) as well the Local Renewable Energy and Energy Storage RFI. 

 

In each of these solicitations, SDCP Staff and the Energy Contract Working Group 
(ECWG) have used the Energy Proposal Evaluation Criteria (EPEC) that was reviewed 
by the board of directors in March 2022 for the purposes of evaluating and scoring each 
potential project or transaction.  

 

Upon receipt of submissions or proposals from the participating project developers and 
energy suppliers, SDCP staff evaluates each project based on the EPEC and prepares a 
summary of offers for initial UHYLHZ�ZLWK�6'&3¶V�ECWG. Part of this initial review typically 
LQYROYHV�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�D�³VKRUW-OLVW´�RI�FRQWUDFWV�ZLWK�ZKLFK�WKH�ECWG authorizes Staff 
to enter into negotiations for a PPA or ESSA contract. Assuming that Staff and shortlisted 
developer(s) are able to agree to mutually agreeable contracts consistent with terms 
authorized by the ECWG, Staff then takes the contracts to the SDCP board for approval 
and authorization to execute. 

 

Staff now proposes to revise the EPEC, for purposes of future evaluation of long-term, 
wholesale contracts for purchase of renewable energy and capacity. 

 

ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION 

The purpose of a defined evaluation criteria is not only to provide SDCP Staff, 
Committees, and the Board a consistent and transparent method via which to evaluate 
all proposed transactions within a given solicitation but also to communicate to potential 
participants, prior to the solicitation, 6'&3¶V� SUHIHUHQFHV� ZLWK� UHVSHFW� WR� HQHUJ\� DQG�
capacity resource acquisition and to encourage developers and suppliers to pursue 
development opportunities that best align with 6'&3¶V�VWDWHG�SULRULWLHV� 

Based on learnings from solicitations SDCP has administered since inception, Staff 
proposes the following changes: 
 

1. For each of the six evaluation criteria, set consistent rating options of high (A), 
medium+ (B), medium- (C), neutral (D) or low (F). 
 

2. For the Project Location criterion, include in the high (A) rating projects in San 
Diego or Imperial County without requiring import rights (or located in CAISO) 



 

and in the medium+ (B) rating project In Imperial County but that require import 
rights. 

 
3. For the Quantitative Value criterion, add the timeline and expectations of ability to 

achieve Full Capacity Deliverability Status to the factors reviewed in rating. 
 

4. For the Project Development Review criterion, add deliverability to the project 
development related factors reviewed in rating. 

 
5. For the Community Benefits criterion: 

a. Adjust the high (A) rating to only include projects that have set up, or 
committed to, a community benefit fund that benefits SDCP customers. 

b. Create the medium+ (B) rating for projects located within a DAC, COC, or 
REDZ, that have committed to, but have not yet completed, Community 
Outreach to demonstrate Community Benefits. This will allow for 
differentiation of high (A) and medium+ (B) based on a community benefit 
fund and status of community outreach. 

c. Adjust the low (F) rating to factor in wholesale energy projects above 20 
MW that are located within 1,500 feet of residential property. 

 
6. For the Workforce Development criterion:  

a. Adjust the high (A) rating to only include projects that have executed, or 
have committed to executing, a Project Labor Agreement (PLA). 

b. Adjust the medium+ (B) rating to include projects without a PLA, but that 
have local hire commitments and commits to 50% or more union labor. 

c. Adjust the medium- (C) rating to include projects that can demonstrate 
WKH\�PHHW�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�,QIODWLRQ�5HGXFWLRQ�$FW��³,5$´� 

d. Adjust the low (F) rating to include projects that do not meet one or all of 
prevailing wage, skilled and trained workforce, and local hire commitments 
instead of demonstrating they will not meet all three. 
 

7. For the Environmental Stewardship criterion: 
a. Adjust the high (A), medium+ (B) and medium- (C) ratings to clarify that 

previously developed land includes agricultural land no longer suitable for 
farming. 

b. Adjust the high (A) rating to include projects that beneficially impact and 
reduce air pollution within communities that have been disproportionately 
impacted by the existing generating fleet. 

c. Adjust the medium+ (B) rating to allow for projects not on current or 
previously developed land, but that beneficially impact and reduces air 
pollution within communities that have been disproportionately impacted 
by the existing generating fleet. 

d. Adjust the medium- (C) rating to include projects not on current or 
previously developed land, but that demonstrate additional societal, 
economic, water-saving, or environmental benefits beyond the climate and 
GHG reduction benefits of renewable energy. 

e. Adjust the Low (F) rating to include projects that have not conducted 
IHDVLELOLW\�VWXG\�RI�WKH�SURMHFW¶V�HQYLURQPHQWDO�LPSDFWV. 



 

 
For reference, an illustrative example of how SDCP will summarize and present the 
evaluation of potential transactions under this revised EPEC is included below. Note the 
summary has been revised to include project¶s capacity and the capacity price, if 
applicable.  
 

 
 

SDCP intends that the EPEC will continue to be updated as SDCP grows and evolves, 
and it may be modified on a solicitation-by-solicitation basis to reflect specific goals of 
targeted procurement efforts. 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW 
The EPEC revisions were reviewed with 6'&3¶V Energy Contract Working Group 
(ECWG) and the Community & Equity Ad-Hoc committee of 6'&3¶V�Community Advisory 
Committee. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no direct fiscal impact of adoption of this EPEC. Consistent and quantitative 
evaluation of potential energy resource value and risk per this EPEC will allow SDCP to 
reduce energy supply related costs to the benefit of SDCP customers.  
 

ATTACHMENTS 
None. 



 

 

SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
Staff Report ± Item 6 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

To: San Diego Community Power Community Advisory Committee 

From:  Jack Clark, Chief Operating Officer 
Colin Santulli, Director of Programs 
Nelson Lomeli, Program Manager 

Via: Karin Burns, Chief Executive Offer 

Subject:  Update on San Diego Community Power¶V Net Billing Tariff 

Date:  October 12, 2023 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and file an update on San Diego Community Power¶V (SDCP) Net Billing Tariff 
(NBT) for all new customers who install onsite generation on or after April 15, 2023, and 
existing customers transitioning out of the Net Energy Metering (NEM) Tariff following the 
conclusion and/or termination of their 20-year NEM legacy period. 

BACKGROUND 
In December 2022, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) approved Decision 
22-12-056, which adopted a successor tariff to NEM ����FDOOHG�³1HW�%LOOLQJ�7DULII.´ The 
CPUC determined through its NEM 2.0 Lookback Study that the current NEM program 
was not meeting the objectives of Assembly Bill 327 to: 

1. Ensure sustainable growth in the market for customer-sited renewable distributed 
generation; and  

2. Ensure that the total benefits of the successor program to all customers (including 
nonparticipating customers) are approximately equal to the total costs. 

The study showed that NEM 2.0 was creating a cost-shift of hundreds of millions of dollars 
per year to non-NEM customers. The CPUC started the development of the NEM 
successor tariff that would eventually become NQRZQ�DV�³NBT´�Wo alleviate the cost-shift, 
promote affordability across all customers, incentivize the installation of battery storage 
systems, and support grid reliability. 

The development of NBT began in November 2020. The CPUC received 18 proposals 
from multiple parties for the design and structure of the successor tariff. Opening and 
rebuttal testimonies, evidentiary hearings, and opening and reply briefs were submitted 

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/customer-generation/net-energy-metering-nem-2-evaluation


 

2 

 

throughout the summer of 2021. SDCP filed a Joint Reply Brief1 alongside San Jose 
Clean Energy, recommending that the CPUC: 1) reject the Joint Investor-Owned Utilities 
proposal to use the Avoided Cost Calculator (ACC) for determining customer 
compensation, 2) reject the proposed high fixed charges, 3) adopt a reasonable glidepath 
for the industry, and 4) reject proposals to move NEM 1.0 and 2.0 customers to the 
successor tariff. In December 2021, the CPUC issued its Proposed Decision (PD) on the 
successor tariff. SDCP filed joint comments2 alongside East Bay Community Energy in 
December 2021 arguing that ³cumulative changes to the standard tariff from currently 
DSSURYHG�WDULIIV�JRHV�WRR�IDU�� WRR�TXLFNO\´�DQG�³UHTXHVW� WKDW� WKH�&RPPLVVLRQ�UHMHFW� WKH�
grid participation charge, modify the export credit rate to provide long-term stability 
FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�6LHUUD�&OXE¶V�SURSRVDO��DQG�PDNH�RWKHU�PRGHVW�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�3'�SULRU�
WR�LWV�DSSURYDO�´ 

Due to the high number of comments and sharp disagreement among parties about the 
PD, the CPUC held the PD and issued a ³Ruling Setting Aside Submission of the Record 
to Take Comment on a Limited Basis´ in May 2022. The CPUC ultimately withdrew the 
December 2021 PD in November 2022. SDCP, in coalition with Redwood Coast Energy 
Authority, East Bay Community Energy, San Jose Clean Energy, and Peninsula Clean 
Energy Authority filed joint comments3 applauding the withdrawal of the original PD and 
requested that the CPUC revise the new PD to ensure a smooth transition, clarify use of 
Public Purpose Program Charges to fund the ACC Plus Adder, consider additional 
incentives for low-income customers, and allow commercial customers to receive adders. 
The CPUC issued a new PD in November 2022 which was revised in December 2022 
and ultimately adopted by the CPUC to become NBT. 

NBT cannot accurately be called ³NEM 3.0´ because it shifts away from the ³net metering´ 
structure entirely. Instead, it nets billing credits and charges instead of netting energy 
itself. Under NBT, all consumption of energy from the grid (i.e., ³electricity iPSRUWV´� is 
metered on a separate channel in real time and charged retail rates. All energy generated 
and exported to the grid (i.e., ³electricity e[SRUWV´��LV�PHWHUHG�RQ�D�VHSDUDWH�FKDQQHO�LQ�
real time and billing credits are generated using the utilities¶ ACC rates at each hour of 
the year. 

The ACC provides an hourly estimate of the total grid benefits resulting IURP�D�FXVWRPHU¶V�
load reduction. This includes the avoided costs of both capacity and energy, as well as 
the value of ancillary services, greenhouse gas emissions reductions, and avoided 
transmission and distribution infrastructure costs. The CPUC simplified the prices in the 
8760 hours of the ACC into a single average monthly value for each hour of the day, 
differentiated between weekdays and weekends/holidays. The ACC values are intended 
to incentivize adoption of solar paired with battery storage by providing price signals to 
customers to export energy to the grid when energy is most valuable and needed to 
relieve grid stress. 

 
1 https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/Joint-Reply-Brief-of-SJCE-and-SDCP_9.14.21.pdf 
2 https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/R2008020-Joint-CCA-Comments-on-PD_Filed_1.7.22.pdf  
3 https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/R.20-08-020-Opening-Comments-of-Joint-CCAs-on-the-NEM-Revised-PD.pdf  

https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/Joint-Reply-Brief-of-SJCE-and-SDCP_9.14.21.pdf
https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/R2008020-Joint-CCA-Comments-on-PD_Filed_1.7.22.pdf
https://sdcommunitypower.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/R.20-08-020-Opening-Comments-of-Joint-CCAs-on-the-NEM-Revised-PD.pdf


 

3 

 

All NBT customers must take service under a highly differentiated Time-of-Use (TOU) 
rate schedule. For the San Diego Gas & Electric (SDG&E) territory, the CPUC directed 
that rate schedule to be TOU-EV-5 since it has significantly different rates for on-peak 
and off-peak periods. Additionally, all customers must switch to monthly billing, instead of 
annually, and must pay the amount owed each month. The CPUC allowed the utilities to 
establish a successor rate schedule through a Tier 2 advice letter, a general rate case 
Phase 2, or a rate design window. SDCP will monitor the establishment of a successor 
rate schedule and may consider bringing back its own version for approval by the Board. 

Recognizing the shift to decarbonization and electrification of buildings, the CPUC 
allowed for customers to oversize their generation systems by up to 50% more than 
historical loads. Customers, however, need to attest that their energy consumption will 
increase within 12 months. 

Per the CPUC decision, SDG&E started placing new solar customers on its NBT rate 
schedule on April 15, 2023. SDG&E is required to implement a NBT billing system by 
mid-December 2023. Until the NBT billing system is operational, SDG&E will bill NBT 
customers under the NEM 2.0 Tariff. 

DISCUSSION 
Over the last several months, SDCP staff conducted significant analysis to broadly 
evaluate how SDCP compensates customers for the onsite generation of energy. The 
analysis included 1) considerations to adopt a payment structure for new onsite 
generation customers that aligns compensation with the needs of the grid (i.e., NBT), 2) 
potential programs designed to incentivize the pairing of storage with new onsite 
installations to support grid resilience, and 3) enhancements to the current SDCP NEM 
policy to improve compensation mechanisms and remove Net Surplus Compensation 
(NSC) caps. Comprehensively, this package of recommended actions would result in the 
most customer-centric, progressive onsite generation compensation strategy in 
California. The strategy carefully balances multiple priorities including supporting the local 
San Diego solar and storage industry, increasing access to distributed energy resources 
to Communities of Concern and low-income customers, an increasing statewide focus on 
grid resilience, customer fairness, and financial prudence for the agency.  

This agenda item is focused on the consideration to adopt NBT recommendations for 
compensation for new onsite generation customers. 

ANALYSIS 

Current and Potential Future Onsite Generation Customer Overview  

SDCP currently has over 152,000 accounts enrolled in its NEM tariff, with 98% of those 
accounts being residential customers, and approximately 12% being customers enrolled 
in the California Alternative Rates for Energy (CARE) program and Family Electric Rate 
Assistance (FERA).  

The following tables show the breakdown of accounts currently enrolled in the SDCP 
NEM Tariff by customer type (i.e., Commercial, Residential CARE/FERA, and Residential 



 

4 

 

Non-CARE/FERA) and the percentage of accounts by customer type per SDCP member 
agency. 

Table 1: Number of Accounts Currently Enrolled in SDCP 
NEM Tariff 

Residential 
CARE/FERA 

Residential Non-
CARE/FERA Commercial Total 

18,616 130,761 2,796 152,173 

12% 86% 2% 100% 
Totals may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 

Table 2: 3HUFHQW�RI�$FFRXQWV�(QUROOHG�LQ�6'&3¶V�1(0�7DULII�E\ 
Customer Type by Member Agency 

Member Agency Commercial Residential 
CARE/FERA 

Residential Non-
CARE/FERA 

City of Chula Vista 1% 16% 83% 

City of Encinitas 1% 2% 96% 
City of Imperial 

Beach 3% 19% 78% 

City of La Mesa 2% 8% 90% 

City of National City 5% 46% 49% 

City of San Diego 2% 12% 86% 

County of San Diego 2% 12% 86% 
Totals may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 

Importantly, if NBT is adopted, these NEM customers would not be affected by NBT until 
they complete or terminate their 20-year NEM legacy period, at which point they would 
transition to the new tariff. Existing customers with onsite generation would remain on the 
SDCP NEM tariff for their generation charges and credits and on their SDG&E NEM tariff 
for delivery charges and credits during that period. Their NEM legacy period starts on the 
date they interconnected and received permission to operate. 

SDCP expects 252 of these existing onsite generation NEM accounts to complete their 
NEM 1.0 legacy period in 2024 and switch to NBT, representing 0.2% of customers. The 
annual number of customers completing their NEM 1.0 legacy period is approximately 
fewer than 500 customers per year until 2029. 

Staff needed to estimate the potential number of customers who would be served by 
future rates to calculate potential financial impacts of various NEM and NBT scenarios. A 
key input to that analysis is expected future rooftop solar adoption, the primary source of 
onsite generation by SDCP customers. SDCP forecasted the following scenarios of solar 
growth over the next three years: 

1. Low Growth: Assumes an adoption rate that is based on the average number of 
new NBT-specific setups seen in SDCP's service territory during the months of 
May-July 2023. May 2023 was the first full month that any new SDG&E solar 



 

5 

 

interconnections were placed on NBT. This scenario assumes a dramatic 
decrease in the number of installations from the historical trajectory. 

2. Mid Growth: Assumes a contraction in the number of historical installations by 
40% in the residential market based on estimates from the Solar Energy Industries 
Association.4 

3. High Growth: Assumes business as usual with no change in the number of 
installations and is based on the average number of installations per month in 
SDCP service territory seen in 2021, before the rush in 2022. 

Based on these assumptions, the forecast shows that SDCP could see 2,000 new NBT 
customers in the Low Growth scenario, 30,000 in the Mid Growth scenario, or over 50,000 
new NBT customers in the High Growth scenario. This includes customers who are 
ending their 20-year legacy NEM period and transitioning to NBT. Staff determined that 
the Mid Growth scenario is more likely to occur due to historic investments under the 
Inflation Reduction Act, a decline in rooftop solar prices, and an increasing number of 
incentives available for energy storage to be paired with solar systems. 

Program Options 

Using the Mid Growth scenario for future expected onsite generation customers, staff 
conducted an in-depth impact analysis of two potential policy options: 

1. Extend the current NEM 2.0 Tariff to all new customers; or 
2. Implement an NBT. 

Option 1: Extending NEM 2.0 for All New Customers 
The first option examined the possibility of keeping the current NEM 2.0 tariff for all 
new self-generation customers. Several factors led staff to not recommend this option.  

Since SDCP represents only a portion of the total bill, new customers would still be 
subject to SDG&E's NBT (now called ³Solar Billing Plan´) for transmission and 
distribution costs. Since generation rates represent 35%-45% of the total bill, 
extending NEM 2.0 would have a minimal impact on the billing changes imposed by 
NBT.  

Moreover, having two different structures could cause significant customer confusion, 
cause potential billing issues, and further complicate estimates on the value of rooftop 
solar for customers including system payback periods. As required by the &38&¶V�
NBT decision, all new NBT customers would still be required to take service under 
TOU-EV-5, regardless RI�6'&3¶V�NEM tariff. 

Staff also analyzed the financial impact of extending the current NEM 2.0 Tariff. The 
analysis revealed that under the Mid Growth scenario, extending the current NEM 
Tariff to all new customers would result in costs to SDCP amounting to approximately 

 
4 Solar Industry Research Data | SEIA https://www.seia.org/solar-industry-research-data 

https://www.seia.org/solar-industry-research-data
https://www.seia.org/solar-industry-research-data


 

6 

 

$32 million over three years. All SDCP customers would have to bear these costs 
through rates while the benefits would be targeted to a limited number of customers. 
Additionally, staff believes that this investment fails to send the proper pricing signals 
to promote energy storage adoption and does not contribute to grid reliability. 

Option 2: Adopt a Net Billing Tariff for All New Customers 
The second option analyzed was the adoption of an NBT for all new customers. This 
is the staff recommendation based on the results of the analysis outlined below. 

An initial step to analyze the adoption of NBT was to consider the appropriateness of 
using the SDG&E ACC rates for a potential SDCP NBT. To determine if the load curve 
and ACC rates for SDG&E could be used as a proxy for SDCP, SDCP and its 
consultant, Pacific Energy Advisors (PEA), analyzed the &38&¶V 2022 Distributed 
Energy Resources ACC Documentation conducted by Energy and Environmental 
Economics, Inc. (E3). The SDCP and PEA teams determined that the work done by 
E3 for the CPUC was thorough and adequate�� DQG� WKDW� 6'*	(¶V� $CC rates for 
generation sufficiently reflect 6'&3¶V�ORDG�FXUYH. Accordingly, the analysis of adopting 
NBT was done assuming the usage of 6'*	(¶V�$&& UDWHV�IRU�6'&3¶V�1%7� 

By design, the ACC provides customer compensation for exported energy from onsite 
energy systems that is more aligned with wholesale energy prices and thus 
incentivizes energy storage. These price signals align with grid conditions and needs, 
especially during the peak periods in the summer months of August and September. 
As such, adopting NBT (including the ACC) is aligned with 6'&3¶V�FRPPLWPHQW�of 
supporting grid reliability and encouraging energy storage adoption. Additionally, 
adopting NBT would align with the direction that the majority of Load Serving Entities 
(LSEs) are moving in, including fellow CCAs. Clean Power Alliance, the largest CCA 
in the state, adopted NBT for all new customers in July 2023, and the majority of CCAs 
in Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) territory are bringing NBT to their Board of Directors 
for consideration in the next couple of months. Additionally, aligning the generation 
and distribution components under a NBT structure would significantly reduce 
customer confusion and billing issues, and provide further clarity to the solar industry 
and thus allowing them to model estimates more effectively. 

Staff analyzed the financial impacts of adopting NBT for all new customers. The 
analysis showed that under the Mid Growth scenario, adopting NBT would result in 
costs to SDCP amounting to approximately $8.5 million over three years. This 
represents a savings of approximately $23 million for all SDCP rate payers compared 
to extending the current NEM 2.0 tariff. This is due to the lower ACC rates paid for 
generation. These savings could be returned to all customers via rate savings and/or 
reinvested back into the community via programs, such as developing an incentive 
program to encourage pairing battery energy storage systems with new solar 
installations. 

Recommendations 

With the conclusion of this analysis, staff is bringing three recommendations to the Board 
RI�'LUHFWRUV��³%RDUG´��that relate to future onsite generation customers: 



 

7 

 

Adopt NBT for All New Customers 
Based on the analysis described above and the associated savings for all ratepayers, 
staff will recommend to the Board adoption of a SDCP NBT that mirrors the CPUC 
NBT decision and is in line with SRUWLRQV�RI�6'*	(¶V�SURSRVHG�1BT. NBT would give 
SDCP the opportunity to meet the needs of all customers more equitably, while 
helping to reduce costs for all customers. This enables SDCP to leverage the savings 
and provide programs that encourage clean energy use and energy storage adoption 
with a particular focus on low-income customers that are currently underrepresented 
in NEM participation. 

Adopting NBT would mean that new NBT customers would: 

1. Have all electricity exports separately metered on a different channel than all 
electricity imports; 

2. Be compensated based on the ACC rates; 
3. All electricity imports would be charged retails rates; and 
4. Be billed monthly for net charges. 

The adoption of NBT will not affect existing NEM customers until the completion and/or 
termination of their 20-year NEM legacy period. 

Provide Generation Adders for New NBT Customers 
To accompany the adoption of NBT, staff will recommend to the Board including 
additional JHQHUDWLRQ�LQFHQWLYHV�RU�³DGGHUV´� in the tariff in the form of compensation 
per generated kilowatt hour to be added to the ACC. Similar adders were established 
by the CPUC for some investor-owned utilities (IOUs) as part of NBT. The adder 
amounts (i.e., $/kWh) were selected to achieve a simple payback period of nine years 
for solar systems. The CPUC determined the nine-year payback period was 
reasonable and would allow the market to grow sustainably.  

The CPUC adopted a generation adder for residential customers to achieve the nine-
year payback period for two IOUs: PG&E and Southern California Edison (SCE). This 
adder is higher for customers participating in the CARE/FERA programs due to their 
lower monthly bills. In its decision, the CPUC determined that in SDG&E territory, the 
simple payback period for solar systems was already below the nine-year target, in 
large part due to the relatively higher rates in SDG&E territory. Accordingly, no adder 
was included for SDG&E customers in the CPUC decision. The table below shows the 
adders and associated simple payback periods by IOU as determined by the decision: 

Table 3: CPUC Adopted Initial ACC Plus Adders by 
Utility ($/kWh) 

Customer Segment SDG&E PG&E SCE 

Residential Non-
CARE 

$0.000 $0.022 $0.040 



 

8 

 

Residential CARE $0.000 $0.090 $0.093 

Commercial (not 
eligible) 

$0.000 $0.000 $0.000 

 

Table 4: CPUC Simple Payback Periods for SDG&E Net 
Billing Customers Stand-alone Solar Payback Period 

(years) 
Customer Segment SDG&E PG&E SCE 

Residential Non-
CARE 

5.95 9.00 9.00 

Residential CARE 8.43 9.00 9.00 

Commercial (not 
eligible) 

7.50 8.17 9.38 

To further support the growth of regional solar adoption, staff analyzed the possibility 
of providing generation adders that achieve the following goals: 

x Enhance the competitiveness of 6'&3¶V� onsite generation compensation 
policy and clarify the value of SDCP to customers; 

x Close the generation bill credit gap and reduce the payback period to make 
adoption more financially attractive for customers; 

x Ensure simplicity and ease of understanding of the adder; 

x Address and promote equity for CARE and/or FERA customers; and 

x Support grid reliability. 

In the Community Power Plan, SDCP committed to support populations historically 
underrepresented in energy program participation by centering communities of 
concern in program design to enable participation by all customers, in addition to 
directing more investments to communities of concern. Low-income customers are 
underrepresented in NEM participation; CARE/FERA customers make up 24% of all 
customers but account for only 12% of all NEM customers. This disparity was a key 
motivator for identifying an adder that would provide additional financial support to 
income-qualified customers to lessen the financial burden of adopting onsite 
generation, such as rooftop solar. 

https://sdcommunitypower.org/community-power-plan-cpp/


 

9 

 

With these goals in mind, staff XVHG�WKH�&38&¶V�customer bill model5 employed during 
the adoption of NBT and analyzed the impact to the payback period the adder has on 
non-CARE/FERA customers and used it to determine the adder amount needed for 
CARE/FERA customers to achieve an equal simple payback period for stand-alone 
solar. 

Staff will recommend to the Board that SDCP provide the generation adders outlined 
in Table 5 below to all customers, including residential non-CARE/FERA, residential 
CARE/FERA, and non-residential (commercial) customers. Staff will propose to the 
Board that all new non-CARE/FERA customers, both residential and non-residential, 
receive a generation adder of $0.0075/kWh for six years. This adder aligns with the 
SUHPLXP� IRU� 6'&3¶V� 3RZHU���� VHUYLFH� EHFDXVH� FXVWRPHUV� DUH� H[SRUWLQJ� �����
renewable energy. Additionally, staff proposes an adder for residential CARE/FERA 
customers of $0.11/kWh for six years. 

 

Table 5: Proposed Generation Adders 
Customer 

Class 
Residential 

(Non-CARE/FERA) 
Residential 
CARE/FERA Commercial 

Adder 
Amount $0.0075/kWh $0.11/kWh $0.0075/kWh 

Staff determined that the proposed adder amounts would result in a payback period 
for stand-alone solar of approximately six years, including CARE/FERA customers, 
which is similar to the average simple payback period for NEM 2.0 customers.6 This 
aligned with the recommendations from GRID Alternatives to ensure that the tariff 
benefits income-qualified households with higher adders and shorter payback periods. 

Table 6: Simple Payback Periods for SDCP Net Billing Customers with 
Generation Adders (years) 

Customer Class Residential 
(Non-CARE/FERA) 

Residential 
CARE/FERA Commercial 

Stand-alone 
Solar Payback 
Period (years) 

5.83 5.91 7.33 

Staff will recommend to the Board that these adders be offered to all new NBT 
customers that started service on or after April 15, 2023, and be offered for three 
years, ending on December 31, 2026. After three years, but prior to the sunset of the 
adder, staff would assess the general market conditions for solar and storage and 
evaluate the effectiveness of the adders in helping: 

 
5 Net Billing Tariff (ca.gov) https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/customer-generation/nem-
revisit/net-billing-tariff  
6 NEM 3.0 ± Making the Financial Case by Combining Home Electrification with Energy Storage - Schneider Electric Solar America 
https://solar.se.com/us/en/2023/08/22/nem-3-0-making-the-financial-case-by-combining-home-electrification-with-energy-
storage/#:~:text=Now%2C%20let's%20look%20at%20some,to%20recover%20the%20initial%20investment. 

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/customer-generation/nem-revisit/net-billing-tariff
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/customer-generation/nem-revisit/net-billing-tariff
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/customer-generation/nem-revisit/net-billing-tariff
https://solar.se.com/us/en/2023/08/22/nem-3-0-making-the-financial-case-by-combining-home-electrification-with-energy-storage/#:~:text=Now%2C%20let's%20look%20at%20some,to%20recover%20the%20initial%20investment.
https://solar.se.com/us/en/2023/08/22/nem-3-0-making-the-financial-case-by-combining-home-electrification-with-energy-storage/#:~:text=Now%2C%20let's%20look%20at%20some,to%20recover%20the%20initial%20investment
https://solar.se.com/us/en/2023/08/22/nem-3-0-making-the-financial-case-by-combining-home-electrification-with-energy-storage/#:~:text=Now%2C%20let's%20look%20at%20some,to%20recover%20the%20initial%20investment


 

10 

 

x Reduce the simple payback period for CARE/FERA customers; 

x Drive adoption of solar among CARE/FERA customers; and 

x Sustain the region's rooftop solar market. 

Staff would come back to the CAC and Board in 2026 with recommended adjustments 
or updates.  

Additionally, staff is evaluating the feasibility of providing an energy storage grid 
interactive adder that will allow SDCP to utilize the batteries for grid reliability support. 
Staff will bring back an update on this adder to the Board in early 2024. 

NBT Annual Net Surplus Compensation Approach 
To accompany the adoption of NBT, staff will recommend to the Board a standard 
approach to the Net Surplus Compensation (NSC), similar to the NSC approach for 
NEM customers. Under the standard NSC payment procedure, the total amount of 
electricity export and electricity import volumes are netted to determine a net annual 
electricity export amount in kWh wherever applicable. This amount is then 
compensated based on the NSC rate for the month the customer has their true-up. 
Customers are eligible to receive a check if their NSC amount is $100 or more; 
otherwise, the amount is carried over to the next billing cycle to offset future charges. 

In the CPUC decision, utilities contend that customers may receive a double payment 
for the same the exports ² one payment at ACC rates and another at NSC rates, 
which is effectively the ACC rate for the entire month. The CPUC acknowledges this 
potential and directed the utilities to implement the following adjustment: 

1. Calculate if a customer is a net exporter of electricity over the past 12 months; 
2. Calculate the average of the ACC rate of all NBT customers in the service 

territory for the past 12 billing cycles; 
3. Calculate a NSC adjustment amount by multiplying the average ACC by the 

annual net electricity exported; and  
4. Debit the NSC adjustment from the total NSC payment amount. 

Staff holds a different, more customer-centric perspective than the CPUC and 
considers the true-up process as a demarcation between the billing credits using the 
ACC and the compensation of net electricity exported. For this reason, staff will 
recommend to the Board that SDCP should not adopt a NSC adjustment process and 
instead should maintain the standard process for NSC. This would further differentiate 
our tariff from the utility and provide a better customer experience in alignment with 
keeping our customers as the cornerstone of everything that we do and in concert with 
our strategic goal to strongly source and promote local renewable power. 

Recommendation Summary 



 

11 

 

In summary, staff will recommend to the Board that they adopt the Net Billing Tariff in 
Attachment A, with the following key features: 

x All electricity exports, as metered on a separate channel in real time, will be valued 
using the same methodology as SDG&E bundled customers. 

x All electricity exports, as metered on a separate channel in real time, will be 
compensated using the same hourly ACC rates as SDG&E bundled customers. 

x All electricity imports, as metered on a separate channel in real time, will be 
FKDUJHG� XVLQJ� 6'&3¶V� JHQHUDWLRQ� UDWHV� DV� VWLSXODWHG� LQ� WKH� (9-TOU-5 rate 
schedule or a successor rate schedule for residential customers. 

x All electricity exports, as metered on a separate channel in real time, for all 
customers will receive a flat generation adder of $0.0075/kWh for six years. The 
flat generation adder will be $0.11/kWh for six years for customers enrolled in the 
CARE or FERA programs. 

x The generation adders will be offered for all new customers that interconnect and 
receive permission to operate on or after April 15, 2023, through December 31, 
2026. 

o Staff will evaluate the effectiveness of the adders in 2026 and return to the 
Board with any updates or adjustments. 

x NBT customers will continue to receive NSC for total net energy exports over the 
course of an applicable relevant period with no NSC adjustment and be subject to 
6'&3¶V�VWDQGDUG�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�NSC payment. 

x Customers currently served under SDCP¶V NEM Tariff will not be affected by the 
NBT Tariff for the duration of their 20-year NEM legacy period. 

o Once their legacy period concludes or is terminated, they will be placed into 
NBT and will not be eligible for the generation adders. 

x 7KH�1%7�ZLOO� EH�DSSOLFDEOH� WR� FXVWRPHUV�ZKR�EHJLQ� VHUYLFH�RQ�6'*	(¶V�1%7�
schedule on or after April 15, 2023.  

x Until SDG&E and SDCP NBT billing systems are fully operational, customers who 
begaQ�VHUYLFH�RQ�6'*	(¶V�1%7�VFKHGXOH�DIWHU�$SULO��������� are currently being 
billed under the SDCP NEM Tariff but are not eligible for the 20-year legacy period. 
These NBT transitional customers will be switched to billing under the SDCP and 
SDG&E NBT in December 2023 or the date that SDG&E specifies the transition 
will occur. 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Staff presented the recommended proposal, or earlier iterations of the proposal, to 
various local and statewide stakeholders. When possible, and deemed in the best interest 
of SDCP customers, adjustments were made to the proposal based on stakeholder 
feedback. Several of the stakeholders were involved in the 2021 and 2022 NEM CPUC 
proceeding and Staff reviewed and incorporated, when feasible, stakeholder 
recommendations included in comments to the CPUC. 



 

12 

 

Stakeholder engagement was conducted with a variety of stakeholders including: 

x SDCP Board of Directors 
x SDCP Community Advisory Committee Members 
x Local elected officials 
x California Solar & Storage Association 

x Climate Action Campaign 

x GRID Alternatives 

x International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers 569 

x Local chambers of commerce and economic development corporations 

x Other Community Choice Aggregators 

x Sierra Club San Diego chapter 

x Staff of local public agencies 

x Utility Consumers' Action Network  

x Vote Solar 

NEXT STEPS 
SDG&E is anticipated to implement their updated billing systems and switch customers 
by December 15, 2023. If the Board adopts the staff recommendations, staff will work 
with Calpine Energy Solutions to implement the tariff for new onsite generation customers 
and NBT customers currently being served on NEM 2.0 on an interim basis. Staff will 
work with Calpine and SDG&E to ensure proper testing and validation of data 
communications and billing mechanics following adoption. Additionally, Staff will work to 
create a new webpage on the SDCP website with information on NBT. 

Additionally, SDCP recently added a new staff member to focus solely on the 
development of a future battery storage incentive program. Over the coming months, staff 
will conduct an extensive review of battery storage incentive program best practices from 
throughout the country. Concurrently, staff will engage with the industry through informal 
interviews and workshops to incorporate industry feedback into program design. Staff will 
come back to the CAC and the Board in the first quarter of calendar year 2024 with an 
update on program development. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
SDCP estimates that adopting NBT would result in bill credit costs amounting to 
approximately $8.5 million over three years. This represents a significant savings of 
approximately $23.5 million over three years compared to extending the SDCP NEM tariff.  

SDCP estimates that providing generation adders to all customers would result in a cost 
of $2.8 million over three years. This cost would be covered by the savings resulting from 
the adoption of NBT, reducing the savings to approximately $20.7 million over three 
years. 



 

13 

 

SDCP estimates that NSC payments would result in a cost of approximately $3.2 million 
over three years. This cost remains consistent regardless of whether NBT is adopted and 
LV�IDFWRUHG�LQWR�6'&3¶V�DQQXDO�RSHUDWLQJ�EXGJHW� 

Staff does not yet have an estimate of a potential battery energy storage pilot program. 
Staff will bring back an item to the Board in early 2024 to discuss a potential program 
offering and include budget estimates. Staff may be able to use the savings from adopting 
NBT for the battery program. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: San Diego Community Power Net Billing Tariff

 



 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

1 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

San Diego Community Power 
Net Billing Tariff 

APPLICABILITY: San Diego Community Power �³6'&3´� 1HW�%LOOLQJ�7DULII��³1%7´ RU�³1%7�7DULII´) 
shall be effective beginning on April 15, 2023, the day following the NEM-Successor Tariff �³1(0-
67´��eligibility sunset required by the &DOLIRUQLD�3XEOLF�8WLOLWLHV�&RPPLVVLRQ��³&38&´��and shall 
apply to (i) SDCP customers served under San Diego Gas & Electric Company �³6'*	(´) Solar 
Billing Plan �³6%3´) and/or Schedule NBT for Customer-Sited Renewable Distributed Generation1 
�³SDG&E Schedule 1%7´� receiving electric generation services from SDCP, including customers 
with battery storage, fuel cells, or as approved by the CPUC under future aggregated or virtual 
designs, (ii) SDCP customers who are eligible for 6'*	(¶V�NEM Tariff and elect to switch to the 
SDCP NBT Tariff, and (iii) SDCP customers who are automatically transitioned to the SDCP NBT 
following the conclusion and/or termination of their 20-year SDG&E Net Energy Metering (NEM) 
legacy period.2 SDG&E tariffs are available on 6'*	(¶V website3 and may be amended or 
replaced by SDG&E from time to time. This tariff shall remain in effect until modified, amended, 
or replaced by 6'&3¶V %RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV��³%RDUG´��DW�D�duly noticed public meeting of the Board.4 

ELIGIBILITY: 6'&3¶V�1%7�7DULII is available to customers operating a solar, wind, biomass, 
JHRWKHUPDO�� RU� RWKHU� UHQHZDEOH� UHVRXUFH� DV� GHILQHG� LQ� WKH� &DOLIRUQLD� (QHUJ\� &RPPLVVLRQ¶V 
�³&(&´� Renewables Portfolio Standard �³536´� Eligibility Guidebook.5 Renewable Energy 
*HQHUDWLRQ�)DFLOLWLHV� �³5(*)´� are limited to 1MW under the SDCP and SDG&E NBT tariffs. 
Additionally, the customer must participate in SD*	(¶V�6%3��RU�VXFFHVVRU��IRU�QRQ-generation 
services, such as transmission and distribution. SDCP customers served under 6'&3¶V NBT Tariff 
must provide SDG&E with a completed SDG&E NBT or SDG&E NEM Application and comply with all 
other SDG&E requirements for enrollment in the SDG&E 6͟ before becoming eligible for the SDCP 
NBT Program. No direct agreement with SDCP is necessary. 

Eligible SDCP customers who begin service under the SDG&E NBT Schedule on or after April 
15, 2023, are automatically enrolled in the SDCP NBT Tariff either at the time of initially enrolling 
with SDCP or at the time SDG&E begins serving them on the SDG&E NBT Schedule. Eligible 
SDCP customers who begin service under the SDG&E NEM tariff prior to April 15, 2023, will be 

 
1 6'*	¶V proposed Schedule NBT was submitted to the California Public Utilities Commission in Advice Letter 4155-E and 4155-E-A, 
available at https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/tariff-information/advice-letters 
2 See 6'*	(¶V Schedule NEM and Schedule NEM-ST at https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/current-and-effective-tariffs for 
GHWDLOV�RQ�6'*	(¶V�1(0�OHJDF\�SHULRGV� 
3 Current and Effective Tariffs | San Diego Gas & Electric (sdge.com) https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/current-and-effective-
tariffs 
4 Board agendas are available at: https://sdcommunitypower.org/resources/meeting-notes. 
5 The latest 53)�(OLJLELOLW\�*XLGHERRN�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�DW�WKH�&(&¶V�ZHEVLWH� https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-
topics/programs/renewables-portfolio-standard. 
6 See https://www.sdge.com/solar/solar-billing-plan for more information. 

https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/tariff-information/advice-letters
https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/current-and-effective-tariffs
https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/current-and-effective-tariffs
https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/current-and-effective-tariffs
https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/current-and-effective-tariffs
https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/renewables-portfolio-standard
https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/renewables-portfolio-standard
https://www.sdge.com/solar/solar-billing-plan


 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

2 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

eligible for service under the SDCP NEM Tariff7 for 20 years following their SDG&E Original 
Permission to Operate Notice (³PTO´)8 Date.  

Customers served under the SDCP NEM Tariff may elect to switch to the SDCP NBT Tariff. 
Customers who voluntarily switch to the SDCP NBT Tariff or who are automatically transitioned 
to the SDCP NBT Tariff following the conclusion and/or termination of their NEM legacy period are 
not eligible to return to service under the SDCP NEM Tariff. 

This tariff does not apply to customer-generators with multiple meters who wish to aggregate the 
HOHFWULFDO�ORDG�RI�WKH�PHWHUV�ORFDWHG�RQ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�RZQHG��OHDVHG��RU�UHQWHG�SURSHUW\�ZKHUH�
the Renewable Electrical Generation Facility is located, including existing Net Energy Metering 
Aggregation or Virtual Net Energy Metering tariffs. 

NBT TRANSITION CUSTOMERS: Customers who submit complete applications to SDG&E on 
or after April 15, 2023 will interconnect under 6'*	(¶V�Schedule NBT but will be temporarily 
billed on NEM-ST until SDG&E Schedule NBT LV�IXOO\�RSHUDWLRQDOL]HG�LQ�6'*	(¶V�DQG�6'&3¶V�
billing systems, respectively. Once SDG&E Schedule NBT is operationalized, any customers who 
interconnected under SDG&E Schedule NBT but were billed temporarily on NEM-ST will complete 
their true up under their temporary NEM service and transition to billing on the SDG&E Schedule 
NBT at the beginning of their next available billing cycle, currently expected as of December 2023. 
The NEM-ST 20-year legacy period is not applicable to SDG&E Schedule NBT customers taking 
interim service on NEM-ST. 

RATES: All rates for the SDCP NBT Tariff are in accordance with the applicable FXVWRPHU¶V�
otherwise applicable SDCP rate schedule (³SDCP OAS´).9 SDCP NBT residential customers are 
required to enroll on highly differentiated time-of-use rates currently defined as EV-TOU-5 in 
SDCP and SDG&E territory, or other qualified rates that SDG&E and SDCP may develop in the 
future, and may choose to enroll in critical peak pricing or peak day pricing rates wherever 
applicable. The SDCP NBT Tariff provides the mechanism for billing and crediting customers with 
generating facilities only. Customers served under this tariff are still responsible for all billed usage 
charges according to their applicable SDCP rate schedule, including volumetric usage, demand 
charges (if applicable), Power100 surcharges (if applicable), taxes, and all other charges owed to 
SDCP. Nothing in this tariff will supersede any SDG&E or SDCP authorized charges. 

CHARGES, CREDITS AND BILLING: SDCP¶V� generation charges and credits for electricity 
(measured in kilowatt-hours, or ³kWh´) are calculated as described below. 

 
7 SDCP¶V NEM Schedule is available at: https://sdcommunitypower.org/key-documents/. 
8 Permission to Operate Notice (PTO) is 6'*	(¶V written approval authorizing a customer to commence operation of a qualifying 
UHQHZDEOH�HOHFWULFDO�JHQHUDWLQJ�IDFLOLW\�RU�DSSURYLQJ�FXVWRPHU¶V�SURSRVHG�PRGLILFDWLRQV�RI�WKH�JHQHUDWLQJ�IDFLOLW\��7KH�GDWH�that SDG&E 
provides the customer with the original PTO is referred to as the Original PTO Date. See SDG&E Schedule NBT for additional 
information. 
9 6'&3¶V�residential rates can be found at https://sdcommunitypower.org/billing-rates/residential-rates and non-residential rates at 
https://sdcommunitypower.org/billing-rates/commercial-rates. 

https://sdcommunitypower.org/key-documents/
https://sdcommunitypower.org/billing-rates/residential-rates/
https://sdcommunitypower.org/billing-rates/commercial-rates/


 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

3 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

A) Definitions: 

i. ³,PSRUWHG�(OHFWULFLW\´�LV�GHILQHG�DV�ZKHQ�D�FXVWRPHU�XVHV�DQ\�PHWHUHG�electricity supplied 
by SDCP��UHIOHFWHG�DV�³SRVLWLYH´�N:K�XVDJH� as recorded on the import channel of the 
FXVWRPHU¶V�6'*	(�PHWHU. 

ii. ³,PSRUWHG�&KDUJHV´�is defined as the charges associated with the amount of Imported 
Electricity during a billing cycle within the Relevant Period based on the customer's OAS. 

iii. ³(QHUJ\�7UXH�8S´�is defined as the process performed by SDG&E for the transmission 
and delivery service and by SDCP for the generation service, as applicable, at the end of 
each Relevant Period following the date the customer-generator was first eligible for 
schedule NBT, or the date of SDG&E¶V written approval to begin parallel operation of the 
REGF for purposes of participating in Schedule NBT, whichever is later, and at each 
anniversary date thereafter. 

iv. ³([SRUWHG�(OHFWULFLW\´�LV�GHILQHG�DV�ZKHQ�D�FXVWRPHU�VXSSOLHV�DQ\�PHWHUHG�electricity to 
WKH�HOHFWULF�JULG��UHIOHFWHG�DV�³QHJDWLYH´�N:K�XVDJH, as recorded on the export channel of 
WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�6'*	(�PHWHU. 

v. ³Export Compensation Rate,´ at times referred to as the Generation Electricity Export 
Credits (³EEC´)10, is defined as the rate or amount at which Exported Electricity will be 
compensated per kWh. The Export Compensation Rate is based on WKH�&38&¶V�PRVW�
recent Avoided Cost Calculator (³ACC´), adopted as of January 1 of the calendar year of 
WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�LQWHUFRQQHFWLRQ�GDWH��7KH Generation EEC is based on hourly ACC values, 
averaged across days in a month for each hour, differentiated by weekdays and 
weekends/holidays. SDCP utilizes 6'*	(¶V�Generation EEC calculated based on a 
weighted average of ACC values across its four different climate zones. EEC does not 
vary between customer classes or technology. The Generation EEC Price is posted on 
6'*	(¶V�	�6'&3¶V�ZHEVLWHs. 

vi. ³([SRUW�Credits´�DUH�GHILQHG�DV�WKH�DSSURSULDWH�FUHGLW�IRU�DQ\�([SRUWHG�(OHFWULFLW\��EDVHG�
on the Export Compensation Rate multiplied by the amount of Exported Electricity, and 
any applicable credit surcharges. 

vii. ³([SRUW�&UHGLW�%DODQFH´�LV�GHILQHG�DV�ZKHQ�D�FXVWRPHU�KDV�H[FHVV�H[SRUW�FUHGLWV�FDUULHG�

 
10The EEC Price is a $/kWh value which represents the estimated value of exports to the grid. Each year, the EEC Price is calculated 
using the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) Avoided Cost Calculator (ACC) approved to be effective as of January 1 of the 
FDOFXODWLRQ�\HDU��WKH�³YLQWDJH�\HDU´���)RU�HDFK�³YLQWDJH�\HDU´��WKH�((&�3ULFH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�IRU�HDFK�PRQWK�RI�D��-year horizon period, and 
it is differentiated by hour (24 hours) and by weekdays and weekend/holidays. In addition, each hourly EEC Price is broken down in two 
components: (1) the Generation EEC Price (energy, cap and trade and generation capacity) component, and (2) the Delivery Service 
EEC Price (transmission, distribution, greenhouse adder and methane leakage) component. The current version of the ACC is available 
at https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/energy-efficiency/idsm. 

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/industries-and-topics/electrical-energy/demand-side-management/energy-efficiency/idsm


 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

4 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

into the subsequent billing period, or into the SDCP true up process at the end of the 
relevant period. 

viii. ³Net Surplus Electricity´ is defined as the kWh amount of excess electricity exported to the 
grid after netting Electricity Imports and Electricity Exports at end of the Relevant Period. 

ix. ³5HOHYDQW�3HULRG´�is defined as the billing period that consists of twelve-monthly billing 
cycles commencing on the date SDG&E provides Customer-*HQHUDWRU�ZLWK�6'*	(¶V�
written approval to begin parallel operation of the REGF Permission To Operate (³PTO´) 
for purposes of participating in NBT, and on every subsequent anniversary thereof. 

B) Generation Electricity Charges: 

As determined in each billing period, Generation Electricity Charges are calculated by 
PXOWLSO\LQJ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�Imported Electricity (i.e., electricity consumption from the grid) 
in kWh by the applicable electricity (commodity) rate components ($/kWh) in the 
FXVWRPHU¶V applicable SDCP OAS. 

C) Export Credits: 
As determined in each billing period, Export Credits are calculated by multiplying the hourly-
GLIIHUHQWLDWHG�FXVWRPHU¶V�Exported Electricity (i.e., electricity generated and sent to the grid) 
in kWh by the Export Compensation Rate.11 The calculated value of such net electricity 
exports shall be credited to the customer and applied as described in Sections (c) and (d), 
below. 

Export Credits are calculated monthly and can be used to offset volumetric (kWh) 
Generation Electricity Charges (as calculated above) incurred during the billing period but 
at no point can they offset demand charges, taxes, or other charges or fees within the 
&XVWRPHU¶V SDCP OAS, nor will they offset any SDG&E transmission and delivery charges. 
Any unused Generation Electricity Export Credits accrued in a given month can be used to 
offset volumetric (kWh) Generation Electricity &KDUJHV� ZLWKLQ� WKH� FXVWRPHU¶V� 5HOHYDQW�
Period as described in Section (d). Customers on SDCP NBT will be billed based on no 
netting of kWh imports (consumption) and kWh exports (excess generation placed on the 
grid). Generation charges owed to SDCP net of any eligible credits will be paid each month 
and all charges and credits will be trued up at the end of the Relevant Period. 

For the first five years of this NBT Tariff �³ORFN-LQ�SHULRG´�, the Export Compensation Rate 
will be set annually using a 9-year schedule from the ACC. All customers who interconnect 
GXULQJ�WKLV�ILYH�\HDU�³ORFN-LQ�SHULRG´�ZLOO�UHFHLYH a nine-year schedule of Generation ECC 
set in the year of interconnection as long as the SDG&E Interconnection Agreement 
remains valid and under the name of the original customer (or an ³eligible customer-

 
11 See https://sdcommunitypower.org/programs/net-billing-tariff. 



 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

5 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

generator´ as defined in SDG&E¶V Schedule NBT). During the ³ORFN-in SHULRG´� these 
customers will have the Export Compensation Rate derived from the ACC adopted by the 
CPUC to be in effect as of January 1 of the FDOHQGDU�\HDU�RI�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�2ULJLQDO�372�
Date. A new customer moving into a dwelling with an existing generating facility served 
under SDG&E¶V�Schedule NBT will not be eligible to retain the Export Compensation Rate 
associated with the Original PTO Date of the generating facility, with two exceptions as 
described LQ�6'*	(¶V�6FKHGXOH NBT. 

Customers may opt out of their nine-year schedule of Generation EEC and receive an 
Export Compensation Rate that is updated annually based on the most recently adopted 
ACC. Customers that interconnect during the five-year lock-in period may exit their 
respective nine-year schedule of Generation EEC, but will not be able to opt back in. 
Following the five-year lock-in period, Generation EEC for new NBT customers will be 
updated annually on January 1 based on the ACC adopted as of January 1 of that year. 
Generation EEC will be accrued separately for Delivery under SDG&E and Generation 
under SDCP. 

D)  SDCP Generation Adders: 
All new NBT customers are eligible to receive an SDCP Generation Adder. Customers 
that subsequently transfer into this NBT Tariff after the conclusion and/or termination of 
their 20-year NEM legacy period are not eligible for the SDCP Generation Adder. 

The credit is calculated monthly by multiplying the Exported Electricity by the applicable 
$/kWh Generation Adder Rate shown in Table 1. 

Table 1: Generation Adder Rates 

Residential Non-CARE Residential CARE Non-Residential 

$0.0075/kWh $0.11/kWh $0.0075/kWh 

i. Eligibility: 

a. To be eligible for the SDCP ³Residential Non-CARE´ DQG�³Non-
Residential´ Generation Adder, customers need to (a) be served on this 
tariff, and (b) have an NBT effective date between April 15, 2023 and 
December 31, 2026. 

b. To be eligible for the SDCP ³Residential CARE´ Generation Adder, 
customers need to (a) be served on this tariff, (b) have an NBT effective 
date between April 15, 2023 and December 31, 2026, and (c) be enrolled 
in either the CARE or FERA programs as of the effective date. 

c. A new customer moving into a dwelling with an existing Generating 



 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

6 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

Facility served under this tariff on or after January 1, 2027 will not be 
eligible for the SDCP Generation Adder. 

ii. Adder Period: 

a. The SDCP Generation Adder Rates, as defined above, will be fixed 
during the first six (6��\HDUV��WKH�³Adder PHULRG´��EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�WKH�NBT 
effective date communicated by SDG&E to SDCP. Residential customers 
will receive the SDCP Generation Adder during their Adder Period, as 
long as the SDG&E Interconnection Agreement remains valid and under 
the name of the original customer. 

b. Customers receiving the Residential CARE adder will need to maintain 
enrollment in either the CARE or FERA programs for the duration of the 
Adder Period. 

i. If a customer account ceases to be enrolled in either the CARE or 
FERA programs (as communicated to SDCP by SDG&E), the 
customer will be moved to the Residential Non-CARE adder rate. 

ii. If a customer account enrolls in either the CARE or FERA 
programs (as communicated to SDCP by SDG&E), the customer 
will be moved to the Residential CARE adder rate. 

E) Monthly Settlement of SDCP Charges/Credits: 
All NBT customers will pay monthly for all applicable charges including the fixed charges 
within the OAS and any additional net charges due to SDCP and SDG&E. Customers will 
have net charges due in a given month if the sum of their Import Charges and Export 
Credits is greater than zero. Each customer will receive a statement as part of their monthly 
SDG&E bill indicating accrued SDCP Electricity Charges for Imported Electricity and/or 
SDCP Export Credits for Exported Electricity during the current monthly billing cycle. When 
a FXVWRPHU¶V�SDCP credits during the monthly billing cycle result in an accrued credit 
balance in excess of currently applicable SDCP Electricity Charges, the value of those 
FUHGLWV�VKDOO�EH�QRWHG�RQ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�ELOO�DQG�FDUULHG�RYHU�DV�D�ELOO�FUHGLW�IRU�XVH�LQ�D�
subsequent billing cycle(s). 

A customer who has accrued credits during previous billing cycles will see such credits 
applied against currently applicable SDCP Generation Electricity Charges, reducing 
otherwise applicable Generation Electricity Charges by an equivalent amount to such 
credits. Any remaining credits reflected on the FXVWRPHU¶V billing statement shall be carried 
forward to subsequent billing cycle(s) until either (i) the excess credit is used to satisfy 
current Generation Electricity Charges, (ii) the customer no longer receives service from 
SDCP, or (iii) an annual account true up is performed. 



 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

7 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

F) SDCP Annual True Up & Cash Out Processes: 
i) SDCP Annual True Up: At the end of the most recent twelve (12) monthly billing 

F\FOHV��³5HOHYDQW�3HULRG´��RI�each NBT customer, SDCP will perform a true up of 
all active customers. SDCP will determine whether or not each customer has 
produced net surplus electricity, as measured in kWh, over the most recent 12 
ELOOLQJ�F\FOHV��RU�WKH�SHULRG�RI�WLPH�H[WHQGLQJ�IURP�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�FRPPHQFHPHQW�
RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ� LQ�6'&3¶V�1%7�Tariff through the end of their Relevant Period, 
ZKLFKHYHU�LV�VKRUWHU��³7UXH Up Period´� and at each anniversary date thereafter. 
a. NBT Generation Payment Credit Refund: If the customer has an Export Credit 

Balance but incurred SDCP usage charges earlier within the same SDCP 
Annual True Up period, the credits will be applied against any of these charges 
still due. 
If these charges were already paid during the Relevant Period being trued up, 
the amount will instead be carried over as a bill credit for use in the subsequent 
Relevant Period(s) for the benefit of the customer.  

b. Electricity Export Credit Refund: At the time of the Annual True Up, if the 
customer has accumulated Electricity Export Credits in excess of any currently 
outstanding Electricity Charges, those credits will be carried over as a bill credit 
for use in the subsequent Relevant Period(s) for the benefit of the customer up 
to the total SDCP Electricity Charges paid by the customer on the same NBT 
account during the applicable 5HOHYDQW�3HULRG��³5HIXQGDEOH�((&´���FRQVLVWHQW�
with SDCP¶V�$QQXDO�&DVK Out practice in Section (d)(ii). Any unused Electricity 
Export Credits over what is carried over as a bill credit for use in the subsequent 
Relevant Period (s) for the benefit of the customer up to the total SDCP 
Electricity Charges paid by the customer shall not be carried forward to the 
start of a new Relevant Period; rather, the unused Electricity Export Credits 
shall be zeroed out and a new Relevant Period will commence. 

c. Net Surplus Compensation (³NSC´): SDCP will determine at the time of Annual 
True Up whether each customer has produced Net Surplus Electricity over the 
course of the Relevant Period. If a customer has produced Net Surplus 
Electricity, then SDCP shall credit such customer an amount that is equal to 
the monthly Net Surplus Compensation rate per kWh, as defined in Section 
e.i.c.1, multiplied by the quantity of Net Surplus Electricity produced by the 
customer during the Relevant Period, consistent with SDCP¶V Annual Cash Out 
practice in Section F.ii below. The SDCP NSC Rate is posted to SDCP¶V website 
and updated monthly.12 

1. 6'&3¶V�16&�5DWH�LV�HTXDO�WR�WKH�applicable PRQWKO\�6'*	(¶V�16&��
which is defined by the CPUC DV�³D�VLPSOH�UROOLQJ�DYHUDJH�RI�HDFK�
XWLOLW\¶V�'HIDXOW�/RDG�$JJUHJDWLRQ�3RLQW��³DLAP´) price from 7 a.m. to 
�� S�P�´�� DQG� ³FDOFXODWHG�PRQWKO\� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� KRXUO\� GD\-ahead 
 

12 SDCP Net Energy Metering (NEM) - https://sdcommunitypower.org/programs/net-energy-metering/ 

https://sdcommunitypower.sharepoint.com/sites/SDCommunityPower/Shared%20Documents/Programs/P007_Distributed%20Energy%20Resources/01_Solar%20&%20Generation/05_Net%20Billing%20Tariff/03_CAC-BOD%20Meetings/Oct%202023/SDCP%20Net%20Energy%20Metering%20(NEM)%20-
https://sdcommunitypower.org/programs/net-energy-metering/


 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

8 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

HOHFWULFLW\�PDUNHW�SULFH�DW�HDFK�XWLOLW\¶V�'/$3�SULFH�SXEOLVKHG�RQ�WKH�
California Independent System Operator (³CAISO´) Open Access 
Same-Time Information System (³OASIS´), and ending the twentieth 
day of each month13´�� RI� WKH� FXVWRPHU� WUXH up month plus 
$0.0075/kWh. 

ii) SDCP Annual Cash Out: $W� WKH� HQG� RI� HDFK� FXVWRPHU¶V� UHOHYDQW� SHULRG, any 
current customer who has a combined Refundable EEC and Net Surplus 
Compensation value of $100 or more that exceeds any outstanding Electricity 
Charges, will be sent a payment by check via United States Postal Service Mail to 
WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�8�6��PDLOLQJ�DGGUHVV�RQ� ILOH�DW� WKH� WLPH�RI�PDLOLQJ� IRU� WKH�FUHGLW�
EDODQFH�RQ�WKHLU�DFFRXQW��DV�GHWHUPLQHG�WKURXJK�6'&3¶V�$QQXDO�7UXH Up process 
as specified in this section c(i), above. Customers receiving direct payment will 
have an equivalent amount removed from their NBT account balance at the time 
of check issuance. In the event that customers have a combined Refundable EEC 
and Net Surplus Compensation value that does not exceed $100, such credit 
balances will be carried forward into the subsequent Relevant Period(s) to offset 
future SDCP Electricity Charges as a Rollover. All NBT accounts will be reset to 
zero kWh annually as of the FXVWRPHU¶V next monthly billing cycle and the only NBT 
FUHGLWV�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG�RQ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�DFFRXQW�ZLOO�EH�WKH�FRPELQHG�5HIXQGDEOH�
EEC and Net Surplus Compensation credit balances less than $100. 
Payments will be released up to 60 days after true up billing. Checks will expire 90 
calendar days after issuance. If checks expire, customers may request the 
reissuance of a check and SDCP will make a reasonable effort to reissue the check 
ZLWKLQ����GD\V�RI�D�FXVWRPHU¶V�UHTXHVW� 

iii) SDCP Cash Out for Terminations: Customers who close their electric account 
through SDG&E, opt out of SDCP and return to bundled service, or move outside of 
the SDCP service area prior to the end of their relevant period, shall be trued up 
DFFRUGLQJ�WR�6'&3¶V�$QQXDO�7UXH Up Process. If applicable, the customer shall 
receive a refund payment by check via United States Postal Service mail to the 
FXVWRPHU¶V�8�6��PDLOLQJ�DGGUHVV on file within 60-90 days after final billing to allow 
for any usage revisions and/or any adjustments from SDG&E for any Export 
Electricity Credits on their account that exceed outstanding Electricity Charges at 
the time of true up, up to the total amount of Electricity Charges paid by the 
customer during the Relevant Period along with Net Surplus Compensation if they 
are determined to have produced Net Surplus Electricity. 

Checks will expire 90 calendar days after issuance. If checks expire or are returned 
to SDCP, customers may request the one-time reissuance of a check and SDCP 
ZLOO�PDNH�D�UHDVRQDEOH�HIIRUW�WR�UHLVVXH�WKH�FKHFN�ZLWKLQ����GD\V�RI�D�FXVWRPHU¶V�
request. If the customer did not produce Net Surplus Electricity, as measured in 
kWh, they will not receive a direct payment. After one year, the funds will be 

 
13 CPUC Decision 11-06-016 https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/word_pdf/FINAL_DECISION/137431.pdf  

https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/word_pdf/FINAL_DECISION/137431.pdf


 

ITEM 6 ± ATTACHMENT A 

9 
Effective Date 
Originally Approved: 10/26/2023 

 

FRQVLGHUHG�XQFODLPHG�SURSHUW\�DQG�WXUQHG�RYHU�WR�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�6WDWH�&RQWUROOHU¶V�
Office. 

SDCP reserves the right to work with customers on a case-by-case basis to 
transfer Net Surplus Electricity credits. 

SDG&E NBT PROGRAM: Customers are subject to all applicable terms and conditions and billing 
procedures of SDG&E for SDG&E charges as described in SDG&E¶V�Schedule NBT (with the 
exception of SDCP OAS charges, which are described in SDCP¶V�UDWH�VFKHGXOHV���SDCP may 
amend this NBT Tariff to align with SDG&E Schedule NBT following CPUC approval of the SDG&E 
Schedule NBT and any future amendments to the SDG&E Schedule NBT. SDCP calculates and 
applies generation charges and credits on a monthly basis. SDG&E will continue to calculate and 
apply charges and credits for delivery, transmission, and other services as detailed in SDG&E¶V�
NBT Rate Schedule, and SDCP credits cannot be applied to any SDG&E charges. 

Please review the SDG&E Schedule NBT14 for more information. 

RETURN TO SDG&E BUNDLED SERVICE: SDCP customers participating in the SDCP NBT 
3URJUDP�PD\�RSW�RXW�DQG�HQUROO�LQ�6'*	(¶V�EXQGOHG�VHUYLFH��VXEMHFW�WR�DQ\�DSSOLFDEOH�UHVWULFWLRQV�
imposed by SDG&E. Customers who opt out of SDCP service are subject to SDG&E Schedule NBT. 
SDCP will perform a true XS�RI�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�DFFRXQW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Section (d)(iii) at the 
WLPH�RI�UHWXUQ�WR�6'*	(�EXQGOHG�VHUYLFH��DQG�FXVWRPHUV�ZLOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�6'*	(¶V�WKHQ�FXUUHQW�
rates, terms and conditions of service at the time of enrollment in SDG&E bundled service. 

For details concerning opting out of SDCP service, please contact SDCP Customer Service by 
phone at 888-382-0169 or via email at customerservice@sdcommunitypower.org. 

MISCELLANEOUS: The Chief Executive Officer (³CEO´) of SDCP or their designee may, in their 
discretion,  reserve the right to work with customers on a case-by-case basis to transfer NEM and 
NSC credits and/or otherwise deviate from the process specified in this policy for reasons including 
but not limited to cases of unforeseeable events, inconsistent receivable data from SDG&E, exigent 
circumstances, SDG&E bill presentment limitations or customer hardship. 

 
14 See https://www.sdge.com/solar/solar-billing-plan 

mailto:customerservice@sdcommunitypower.org/
https://www.sdge.com/solar/solar-billing-plan


 

 

SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY POWER 
Staff Report ± Item 7 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

To: San Diego Community Power Community Advisory Committee 

From: Nelson Lomeli, Program Manager 
Lucas Utouh, Director of Data Analytics & Account Services 

Via: Karin Burns, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Update on the existing Net Energy Metering (NEM) Policy 

Date:  October 12, 2023 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and file the update on existing Net Energy Metering (NEM) policy. 

BACKGROUND 
What is Net Energy Metering and How Does it Work? 
Net Energy Metering �³1(0´� is a statewide program available to customers that install 
an onsite renewable energy generation system, like rooftop solar. This program allows 
customers to reduce their electricity consumption and bills. 

NEM allows customers who generate their own energy ("customer-generators") to serve 
their energy needs directly onsite and to receive a financial credit on their electric bills 
for any surplus energy fed back to their utility. In technical terms, the excess energy is 
paid at the customer¶s otherwise applicable rate schedule and time-of-use period. This 
credit is reflected as a negative number on the bill. 

For example: if a commercial customer is on the time metered small general 
service rate schedule, A-TOU, and they are generating and exporting electricity 
in the summer during the 12:00 PM ± 4:00 PM timeframe, every kWh of 
electricity exported would be paid at $0.2205 (the A-TOU rate for that time of use 
period). 

Every billing period, the utility determines how much electricity was exported and how 
much electricity was consumed at each time-of-use period. If the generation credits 
exceed the usage consumption charges, a customer receives a credit on their bill which 
will be applied to future usage costs within the relevant period. If a customeU¶V�
consumption charges exceed the generation credits, a consumption charge is applied 
on the bill. 

True Up and Billing 
Over the course of 12 months, a period commonly referred to as the Relevant Period, 
the utility tracks how many generation credits or consumption charges a customer 



 

2 

accrues each month and banks them. At the end of the 12 months, the utility engages in 
a reconciliation process called true up where all credits, charges, minimum bill 
payments, and any adjustments are summed. If the customer has more consumption 
charges than generation credits, the customer is sent a bill for the outstanding charges. 
However, if the customer has more generation credits than consumption charges, the 
customer does not owe anything, the credits are zeroed out, and their net usage is re-
set or trued up. 

During the Net Usage true up process, the utility also determines how much net kWh 
electricity was either exported or consumed during the 12 months. They sum up all the 
monthly net generation kWh and monthly net consumption kWh to determine a final net 
kWh amount for the year. If the customer was a net consumer (i.e., they consumed 
more electricity from the utility than they exported and thus ended up with net positive 
(+) kWh) the customer does not receive any compensation. However, if the customer 
was a net generator (i.e., they exported more electricity than they consumed in the year 
and thus ended up with net negative (-) kWh) they will then get compensated using the 
XWLOLW\¶V�applicable monthly Net Surplus Compensation (NSC) rate. 

Net Surplus Compensation: 
When a customer exports more electricity to the grid than they consumed during the 
relevant period, the customer is eligible to receive compensation. The amount of 
FRPSHQVDWLRQ�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�XWLOLW\¶V�applicable monthly Net Surplus 
Compensation (NSC) Rate, which varies every month and is based on the wholesale 
prices of electricity. The California Public Utilities Commission defines it as a rolling 
DYHUDJH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�XWLOLW\¶V�'HIDXOW�/RDG�$JJUHJDWLRQ�3RLQW��'/$3��SULFH�IURP���D�P��
to 5 p.m. multiplied by the annual net usage exported by the customer. For the month of 
October 2023��6'*	(¶V�16&�UDWH�LV�����4591/kWh. 

 Example: 
Annual net generation = -450 kWh 
October 2023 Net Surplus Compensation Rate = $0.04591 per kWh 
Total Compensation = $20.70 

 
 

ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION 
Over the last several months, Staff undertook a significant analysis to broadly evaluate 
how SDCP compensates customers for the on-site generation of energy. The analysis 
included 1) consideration for enhancements to the current SDCP NEM policy by 
removing the Net Surplus Compensation (NSC) cap, 2) consideration to incentivize 
customers to install new on-site generation that aligns compensation with the needs of 
the grid (i.e. NBT), and 3) potential programs designed to incentivize the pairing of 
storage with new on-site installations to support grid resilience. Comprehensively, Staff 
believes this package of recommended actions would result in the most customer-
centric, progressive on-site generation compensation strategy in the State. The strategy 
carefully balances multiple priorities including supporting the local San Diego solar and 



 

3 

storage industry, increasing access to distributed energy resources to Communities of 
Concern and low-income customers, an increasing statewide focus on grid resilience, 
customer fairness, and financial prudence for the agency.  

This agenda item is focused on the consideration to enhance the current SDCP NEM 
policy. Details on Net Billing Tariff are included in Agenda Item 6 of the October 
Community Advisory Committee meeting. Progress updates on a potential future solar-
plus-storage incentive program will be brought to future Community Advisory Committee 
meetings. 

Status of current NEM customers 
Based on data from SDG&E as of 9/25/2023, SDCP is currently serving 152,173 NEM 
accounts. The table below captures the breakdown of NEM accounts currently being 
served across SDCP¶V service territory. 

Jurisdiction Number of Accounts Percent 

City of Imperial Beach 836 0.5% 

City of La Mesa 4,392 2.9% 

City of Encinitas 5,894 3.9% 

City of Chula Vista 18,792 12.3% 

City of San Diego 90,559 59.5% 

County of San Diego  30,846 20.3% 

City of National City 854  0.6% 

Total 152,173   

*Please note that SDCP is currently still enrolling approximately 5,000 NEM accounts a month until March 2024 as part of Phase 4 
customer enrollment in National City and Unincorporated County of San Diego. 
The vast majority of NEM accounts (~98%) are residential with commercial, agricultural 
and industrial customers making up the remaining ~2%. 



 

4 

Customer Type Number of Accounts Percent 

Non-residential 2,796 2.0% 

Residential 149,377 98.0% 

Total 152,173   

Customers enrolled in the California Alternative Rates for Energy (CARE) program or 
the Family Electric Rate Assistance (FERA) program, which provides discounted rates, 
make up 12% of NEM accounts. 

A look-back analysis conducted for usage on our NEM customers in 2022 determined 
that 35% of our NEM accounts are net generators with an average excess generation 
production of 2,122 kWh per a12-month relevant period. 

Background on the existing NEM Tariff Policy 
7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�DSSURYHG�6'&3¶V�original Net Energy Metering Program in 
December of 2020. As part of the original Net Energy Metering Program, staff provided 
great details around the mechanics of how 6'&3¶V NEM program was going to be set 
up and with the goal of offering a very progressive but financially prudent NEM program, 
updates were brought to the Board in May 2021 before the commencement of Phase 2 
mass enrollment for Commercial customers in June 2021. With the May 2021 update 
that the Board approved, staff recommended adoption of a Net Surplus Compensation 
(NSC) rate that is set to match 6'*	(¶V�PRQWKO\�16&�5DWH�ZLWK�D���������N:K�DGGHU 
along with establishing an SDCP Net Surplus Compensation limit of $2,500 per account 
per relevant period to protect SDCP and limit the financial risk. This meant that 
individual NEM customers would not receive more than $2,500 in compensation for 
excess net generation per NEM account.  As part of the due diligence then, staff 
evaluated the compensation limits of other CCAs and found most had a $5,000 per 
account per year limit. Staff recommended a $2,500 per account per relevant period 
compensation limit due to the significantly larger number of NEM accounts served by 
SDCP and the growing number of rooftop solar installations in our area. This 
compensation limit offered protection to SDCP from volatile wholesale market prices 
and therefore volatile NSC rates especially at a time when we were launching service to 
customers for the first time and did not have any reserves. 

As part of the May 2021 NEM program update, staff also recommended that the Board 
standardize NEM settlement and billing for all customer classes to a monthly process 
but offer yearly settlement and billing as an option for customers that wish to enroll into 
that option. 

The monthly settlement and billing method allows customers that are net consumers 
(65% of our NEM accounts) to pay smaller monthly statements instead of one large bill 
IRU�DQ�HQWLUH�\HDU¶V�ZRUWK�RI�XVDJH charges. This avoids the bill shock that net 
consumers can experience when they get their true up bill and will reduce the potential 
risk of NEM customers opting out due to the misconception of SDCP increasing their 
bills. 



 

5 

Overview of the latest staff recommended changes to the NEM Program/Tariff 
policy as of October 2023 
With the growth of SDCP service in our region and experience gained in serving NEM 
customers over the past 2 years, staff has received a great deal of meaningful feedback 
from stakeholders in the region with regards to how best to improve the customer 
experience of both net consumers and net generators at the time of their annual true up. 

Staff has heard from NEM customers that the transition of their electric generation 
service to SDCP at the conclusion of their relevant period with SDG&E has been 
appreciated, as this process ensures minimal inadvertent impacts to any accrued 
generation credits under SDG&E's bundled service and reduces customer confusion.  

Customers have also provided overwhelming feedback to staff that the default monthly 
billing and settlement option (which was intended to assist the majority of NEM 
customers who end up as net consumers at the end of the relevant period to avoid large 
true XS�ELOOV��PD\�DW�WLPHV�QRW�EH�EHQHILFLDO�LQ�WHUPV�RI�D�FXVWRPHU¶V�DELOLW\�WR�DFFUXH�
credits and offset their charges accordingly had they been in an annual billing and 
settlement option.  

NEM customers have also voiced their concerns on the $2,500 Net Surplus 
Compensation (NSC) limit for net generators per account per relevant period especially 
as it relates to 6'&3¶V�FRPPLWPHQW�and strategic goal to source and promote local 
renewable power. It should be noted that 6'*	(¶V�EXQGOHG�1(0�SURJUDP�WDULII�GRHV�
not have any Net Surplus Compensation (NSC) limit for net generators. 

With our customers being the cornerstone of everything we do here at SDCP along with 
our commitment and strategic goal to strongly source and promote local renewable 
power, staff will be recommending that the Board should review and approve two critical 
updates to our existing NEM program/tariff: 

1. Removal of the $2,500 Net Surplus Compensation (NSC) limit per account per 
relevant period. $W�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�FXVWRPHU¶V�UHOHYDQW�SHULRG��DQ\�FXUUHQW�1(0�
customer who is a net generator with an accrued Net Surplus Compensation equal 
to or greater than $100, as determined during the applicable true up process, will 
be sent a direct payment by check WR�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�PDLOLQJ�DGGUHVV�RQ�ILOH. 

2. Adoption of a NEM Generation Credit Refund whereby at the time of the annual 
WUXH�XS��LI�D�FXVWRPHU�RQ�6'&3¶V�GHIDXOW�PRQWKO\�VHWWOHPHQW�DQG�ELOOLQJ�RSWLRQ�KDV�
accumulated any NEM generation credits in excess of any  charges accrued over 
the relevant period, those NEM generation credits will be carried over as a bill 
credit for use in the subsequent relevant period(s) for the benefit of the customer 
up to the total SDCP charges assessed and/or paid on the NEM account during 
the Relevant Period being trued up. 

Attachment A shows the proposed changes to the NEM Tariff Policy in redline for ease 
of tracking VKRXOG�WKH�%RDUG�DGRSW�6WDII¶V�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ� Attachment B reflects the 
updated, clean version of the NEM Tariff Policy with all redlines accepted. 

 



 

6 

AD-HOC COMMITTEE AND/OR SUBCOMITTEE REVIEW 
N/A  

FISCAL IMPACT 
Using February 2023 6'*	(¶V�16&�of $0.14538/kWh (the highest NSC observed in 
the last decade) plus the $0.0075/kWh adder and the look-back usage from 2022, staff 
estimates approximately $1.1 million in incremental Net Surplus Compensation; 
whereas looking at the 5-\HDU�DYHUDJH�RI�6'*	(¶V�16& of $0.04138/kWh plus our 
adder, staff estimates approximately $228,104 in incremental Net Surplus 
Compensation. 

Actual compensation amount will vary depending on several factors including, number 
of NEM accounts, number of NEM accounts that are net generators, amount of 
electricity net generated, wholesale prices of electricity, month of true up, customer 
system size, customer behavior, and weather.  

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: NEM Program Policy Upd. 10-26-2023 

Attachment B: NEM Program Policy Upd.  10-26-2023 (Clean) 



�

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 5/27/2021107/261/2023 1�

Policy Title Net Energy Metering Program Tariff Policy 

  Effective Date Original: 
Revision 1: 

12/17/2020 
5/27/2021 

   Revision 2: 10/26/2023 

Net Energy Metering Program Tariff Policy 

A. PURPOSE 

The pPurpose of this Net Energy Metering (NEM) Program Tariff Policy (Policy) is to provide 
adescribe the process for how by which Net Energy Metering (“NEM) (commonly referred to as 
rooftop solar) customers are enrolled into withand served by San Diego Community Power 
(SDCP). 

B. APPLICABILITY 

Customers enrolled in San Diego Gas & Electric Company’s (SDG&E) Net Energy Metering 
NEM Program (SDG&E NEM) or those who submitted a complete NEM interconnection 
agreement  to SDG&E prior to April 15, 2023 that has been approved and who have not opted 
out of SDCP service, will be automatically enrolled in SDCP’s NEMtake service from SDCP 
pursuant to the terms of this Policy Programtariff. Phase-in will occur as stated in Section D 
below. The Program tariffPolicy is applicable for to all NEM customers who install and use a 
Renewable Electrical Generation Facility (e.g., rooftop solar) as defined by and eligible under 
SDG&E’s Schedule NEM – Net Energy Metering tariff (i.e., NEM 1.0) or successor SDG&E’s 
Successor NEM tariff (i.e., NEM 2.0), which may be amended or replaced by SDG&E from time 
to time. A customer’s eligible Renewable Electrical Generation Facility must fall within the 
capacity limits described in SDG&E’s Schedule NEM or Successor NEM and must be located 
on the customer’s owned, leased, or rented premises, must be interconnected and operated in 
parallel with SDG&E’s transmission and distribution systems, and must be intended primarily to 
offset part or all of the customer’s own electrical requirements. 

This rate schedule tariffPolicy will shall be availablegovern the terms of service of on a first-
come, first-served basis to to customers that provide SDG&E with a completed SDG&E NEM 
application and comply with all SDG&E NEM requirements as described in SDG&E’s Schedule 
NEM or sSuccessor NEM tariff. This includes, but is not limited to, customers served by NEM-V 
(Virtual Net Energy Metering), VNM-A (Virtual Net Energy Metering for Multifamily Affordable 
Housing), VNEM-SOMAH (Virtual Net Energy Metering - Solar on Multifamily Affordable 
Housing) and Multiple Tariff facilities as described by SDG&E’s Schedule NEM.  

This tariff Policy is not applicable to customers taking service under SDG&E's Net Billing 
Tariff/Solar Billing Plan. 

C. TERRITORY 
SDCP service area. 
 
 
 
 

Xiomalys Crespo

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



�

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 5/27/2021107/261/2023 2�

D. INITIAL PHASE-IN 

SDCP phased its NEM customers into service on a monthly basis primarily starting in in Phase 
3 of customer enrollment, which commenced in 2022. The transition into SDCP’s service  
occurs at the conclusion of a NEM customer’s Rrelevant Pperiod with SDG&E, as that term is 
defined in SDG&E’s applicable NEM tariff. This approachThe purpose of this approach is to 
minimize any potential impacts from when the SDG&E NEM customers’ true ups occur and 
when SDCP’s service begins.  

E. RATES 

All rates charged under this schedule Policy will be in accordance with the customer’s otherwise 
applicable SDCP rate schedule (OAS). A customer served under this schedule Policy is 
responsible for all charges from its OAS, including monthly minimum charges, customer 
charges, meter charges, facilities charges, demand charges and surcharges, and all other 
charges owed to SDCP or SDG&E. Charges for energy (kWh) supplied by SDCP will be based 
on the net metered usage in accordance with this Policy. 

F. BILLING 

1. Net Consumer and Net Generator: “Net Consumer” is defined as a customer having 
overall positive usage during a specific billing cycle cycle as measured in kilowatt-hours 
(kWh). “Net Generator” is defined as a customer having overall negative usage during a 
specific billing cycle as measured in kWh. 

2. For a customer with Non-Time of Use (TOU) Rates: If the customer is a “Net Consumer,” 
the customer will be billed in accordance with the customer’s OAS. If the customer is a 
“Net Generator,” any net energy production shall be valued in accordance ofwith the 
customer’s OAS. The calculated value of any net energy production shall be credited to 
the customer according to the OAS. 

3. For a customer with TOU Rates: If the customer is a Net Consumer during any discrete 
TOU period reflected within a specific billing cycle, the net kWh consumed during such 
TOU period shall be billed in accordance with applicable TOU period-specific rates / 
charges, as described in the customer’s OAS. If the customer is a Net Generator during 
any discrete TOU period reflected within a specific billing cycle, any net energy 
production shall be valued in consideration of the customer’s OAS. The calculated value 
of such net energy production shall be credited to the customer according to the OAS. 

4. Monthly Settlement and Billing: 

a.  All NEM customers will receive a statement in their monthly SDG&E bill 
indicating any accrued charges for electric energy usage during the current billing 
cycle. These charges are due and payable on a monthly basis, in accordance 
with the OAS. A customer who has accrued credits during previous billing cycles 
will see such credits applied against currently applicable charges, reducing 
otherwise applicable charges by an equivalent amount to such credits. Any 
remaining balance reflected on each customer’s billing statement shall be carried 
forward to subsequent billing cycle(s) until either excess credit is sufficient to 
satisfy the charges or an account true -up is performed. When a customer’s net 
energy production results in an accrued credit balance in excess of currently 
applicable charges, the value of any net energy production during the billing 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



�

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 5/27/2021107/261/2023 3�

cycle (in excess of currently applicable charges) shall be valued at the OAS and 
noted on the customer’s bill, including the quantity of any surplus NEM 
production (measured in kWh), and carried over as a bill credit for use in a 
subsequent billing cycle(s). 

a. NEM Generation Credit Refund: At the time of the aAnnual tTrue u-Up, if the a 
customer on SDCP’s default monthly settlement and billing option has 
accumulated any NEM generation credits in excess of any currently outstanding 
charges, those NEM generation credits will be refundedcarried over as a bill 
credit for use in the subsequent Relevant Period(s) to thefor the benefit of the 
customer up to the total SDCP charges assessed and/or paid by the customer on 
the NEM account during the Relevant Period being trued up.  

4.5. Optional Yearly Settlement and Billing: Residential and Non-residential 
customers, as determined by their OAS, NEM customers may elect to receive yearly 
settlement and billing by notifying SDCP. Customers electing a yearly settlement and 
billing option will receive a statement in their monthly SDG&E bill indicating any accrued 
SDCP charges or credits for electric energy usage or generation during the current 
billing cycle. Charges are not due and payable; rather, the charges or credits are 
calculated in accordance with the OAS and tracked over the course of the Rrelevant 
Pperiod. At the end of the Rrelevant Pperiod, any accrued charges in excess of 
generation credits are due and payable on the next bill. If at the end of the relevant 
period a customer has produced net surplus energy, defined as energy generated and 
exported to the grid in excess of energy consumed by the customer, as measured in 
kWhexcess generation credits, the customer will be paid out in accordance with the 
SDCP True -up & Cash -Out Process set forth at Section 65. 

5.6. SDCP True -Up & Cash -Out Processes. 

a. “True -Up”: At the end of each NEM customer’s Rrelevant Pperiod, SDCP will 
determine whether or not each customer has produced net surplus energy, defined 
as energy generated and exported to the grid in excess of energy consumed by the 
customer, as measured in kWh, over the most recent 12 billing cycles, or the period 
of time extending from the customer’s commencement of participation in SDCP’s 
NEM program through the end of their 12-month Rrelevant Pperiod, whichever is 
shorter (the “True -Up Period”). If the customer has not produced net surplus energy 
at the end of the applicable Rrelevant Pperiod during the True -Up Period, all NEM 
credits, if any, generated through participation in SDCP’s NEM program in excess of 
currently applicable SDCP charges shall be set to zero and any remaining balance 
will be due and payable. 

However, if a customer has produced net surplus energy during their True -Up 
Period, then SDCP shall compensate such customer at a Net Surplus Compensation 
(NSC) amount equal to the SDCP NSC Rate per kWh, as defined in section 6.b, 
multiplied by the quantity of net surplus energy produced by the customer during the 
True -Up Period, consistent with SDCP’s cash -out practice. 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



�

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 5/27/2021107/261/2023 4�

b. “SDCP’s NSC Rate:” is defined as and equal to the monthly SDG&E’s NSC, which is 
defined by the California Public Utilities Commission as “a simple rolling average of 
each utility’s Default Load Aggregation Point (DLAP) price from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m.”, 
and “calculated monthly based on the hourly day-ahead electricity market price at 
each utility’s DLAP price published on the California Independent System Operator 
(CAISO) Open Access Same-Time Information System (OASIS,) and ending the 
twentieth day of each month”, of the customer true -up month plus $0.0075/kWh. 

c. “Cash -Out and Payment”: At the end of each customer’s relevant period, any current 
NEM customer who is a net generator with an accrued Nnet Ssurplus 
Ccompensation equal to or greater than $100, as determined during the applicable 
true -up process, will be sent a direct payment by check, up to $2,500 per account 
per relevant period. Net Ssurplus Ccompensation less than $100 will be rolled over 
into the next relevant period and used to offset future charges. In either scenario, 
customers will have an equivalent credit removed from their NEM account balance at 
the time of check issuance or roll-over. All NEM accounts will be reset to zero kWh 
upon true -up. 

Payments will be released up to 30 60 days after true -up billing. Checks will expire 
90 days after issuance. If checks expire or are returned to SDCP, customers may 
request the one-time reissuance of a check and SDCP will make a reasonable effort 
to reissue the check within 30 days of a customer’s request. 

d. “Aggregated NEM”: Pursuant to California Public Utilities Code section 
2827(h)(4)(B), aggregated NEM customers are “permanently ineligible to receive net 
surplus electricity compensation.” Therefore, any excess accrued credits over the 
course of a year under an aggregated NEM account are ineligible for SDCP’s Cash -
Out as described in Section 5. All other NEM rules apply to aggregated NEM 
accounts. 

G. ACCOUNT CLOSURES 
Customers who close their electric account through SDG&E, opt out of SDCP and return to 
bundled service, or move outside of the SDCP service area prior to the end of their 
Rrelevant Pperiod will be trued up according to SDCP’s NEM policy. Customers that have 
produced net surplus energy, will be paid out in accordance with the SDCP true -up & cash -
out processes. Payments will be released within 60-90 days30 days  after final billing to 
allow for any usage revisions and/or adjustments from SDG&E. Checks will expire 90 days 
after issuance. If checks expire or are returned to SDCP, customers may request the one-
time reissuance of a check and SDCP will make a reasonable effort to reissue the check 
within 30 days of a customer’s request. If customer did not produce net surplus energy, as 
measured in kWh, they will not receive a direct payment. 

SDCP reserves the right to work with customers on a case-by-case basis to transfer NEM 
credits. and/or otherwise deviate from the process specified in this policy for reasons 
including but not limited to cases of unforeseeable events, inconsistent receivable data from 
SDG&E, exigent circumstances, SDG&E bill presentment limitations or customer hardship.s. 

 

H. SDG&E NEM SERVICES 
Customers are subject to the conditions and billing procedures of SDG&E for services 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



�

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 5/27/2021107/261/2023 5�

outside of electric generationtheir non-generation services, as described in SDG&E’s 
applicable NEM tariffs and options addressing NEM service. Customers should be advised 
that while SDCP may settle out balances for generation on a monthly basis, SDG&E will 
continue to assess charges for delivery, transmission, and other services they provide. 
Customers are encouraged to review SDG&E’s most up-to-date NEM tariffs, which are 
available at www.sdge.com.  

I. RETURN TO SDG&E BUNDLED SERVICE 
Customers with NEM service may opt -out and return to SDG&E bundled service at any 
time. SDCP will perform a true -up of the customer’s account in accordance with Section 65, 
at the time of return to SDG&E bundled service, and customers will be subject to SDG&E’s 
then current rates, terms and conditions of service. For details, please visit www.sdge.com. 

J. MISCELLANEOUS 
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of SDCP or their designee may, in their discretion,  
reserve the right to work with customers on a case-by-case basis to transfer NEM and NSC 
credits and/or otherwise deviate from the process specified in this policy for reasons 
including but not limited to cases of unforeseeable events, inconsistent receivable data from 
SDG&E, exigent circumstances, SDG&E bill presentment limitations or customer hardship. 

 
 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



 

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 10/26/2023 1 

Policy Title Net Energy Metering Tariff Policy 

  Effective Date Original: 
Revision 1: 

12/17/2020 
5/27/2021 

   Revision 2: 10/26/2023 

Net Energy Metering Tariff Policy 

A. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Net Energy Metering Tariff Policy (Policy) is to describe the process by 
which Net Energy Metering (NEM) ) customers are enrolled intoand served by San Diego 
Community Power (SDCP). 

B. APPLICABILITY 

Customers enrolled in San Diego Gas & Electric Company¶V��SDG&E) NEM Program (SDG&E 
NEM) or those who submitted a complete NEM interconnection agreement to SDG&E prior to 
April 15, 2023 that has been approved and who have not opted out of SDCP service, will 
automatically take service from SDCP pursuant to the terms of this Policy . Phase-in will occur 
as stated in Section D below. The Policy is applicable to all NEM customers who install and use 
a Renewable Electrical Generation Facility  as defined by and eligible under 6'*	(¶V Schedule 
NEM ± Net Energy Metering tariff (i.e., NEM 1.0) or 6'*	(¶V�Successor NEM tariff (i.e., NEM 
2.0), which may be amended or replaced by SDG&E from time to time. A FXVWRPHU¶V�HOLJLEOH�
Renewable Electrical Generation Facility must fall within the capacity limits described in 
SDG&E¶V�6FKHGXOH�1(0�or Successor NEM DQG�PXVW�EH�ORFDWHG�RQ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�RZQHG��
leased, or rented premises, must be interconnected and operated in parallel with SDG&E¶V�
transmission and distribution systems, and must be intended primarily to offset part or all of the 
FXVWRPHU¶V�RZQ�HOHFWULFDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV� 
This Policy shall govern the terms of service of customers that provide SDG&E with a 
completed SDG&E NEM application and comply with all SDG&E NEM requirements as 
described in SDG&E¶V�6FKHGXOH�1(0 or Successor NEM tariff. This includes, but is not limited 
to, customers served by NEM-V (Virtual Net Energy Metering), VNM-A (Virtual Net Energy 
Metering for Multifamily Affordable Housing), VNEM-SOMAH (Virtual Net Energy Metering - 
Solar on Multifamily Affordable Housing) and Multiple Tariff facilities as described by SDG&E¶V�
Schedule NEM.  

This Policy is not applicable to customers taking service under SDG&E's Net Billing Tariff/Solar 
Billing Plan. 

C. TERRITORY 
SDCP service area. 
 
 
 
 

D. PHASE-IN 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



 

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 10/26/2023 2 

SDCP phased its NEM customers into service on a monthly basis primarily starting in Phase 3 
of customer enrollment, which commenced in 2022. The transition LQWR�6'&3¶V�VHUYLFH occursat 
WKH�FRQFOXVLRQ�RI�D�1(0�FXVWRPHU¶V�Relevant Period with SDG&E, as that term is defined in 
6'*	(¶V�DSSOLFDEOH�1(0�WDULII. The purpose of this approach is to minimize potential impacts 
from when the SDG&E NEM customers¶ true ups occur and when SDCP¶V�VHUYLFH�EHJLQV�  

E. RATES 

All rates charged under this Policy ZLOO�EH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�RWKHUZLVH�
applicable SDCP rate schedule (OAS). A customer served under this Policy is responsible for all 
charges from its OAS, including monthly minimum charges, customer charges, meter charges, 
facilities charges, demand charges and surcharges, and all other charges owed to SDCP or 
SDG&E. Charges for energy (kWh) supplied by SDCP will be based on the net metered usage 
in accordance with this Policy. 

F. BILLING 

1. Net Consumer and Net Generator: ³1HW�&RQVXPHU´�LV�GHILQHG�DV�D�FXVWRPHU�KDYLQJ�
overall positive usage during a specific billing cycle as measured in kilowatt-hours 
�N:K���³1HW�*HQHUDWRU´�LV�GHILQHG�DV�D�FXVWRPHU�KDYLQJ�RYHUDOO�QHJDWLYH�XVDJH�GXULQJ�D�
specific billing cycle as measured in kWh. 

2. For a customer with Non-Time of Use (TOU) Rates: ,I�WKH�FXVWRPHU�LV�D�³1HW�&RQVXPHU�´ 
WKH�FXVWRPHU�ZLOO�EH�ELOOHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�2$6� If the customer is a 
³1HW�*HQHUDWRU�´�DQ\�QHW�HQHUJ\�SURGXFWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�YDOXHG�LQ�accordance with the 
FXVWRPHU¶V�2$6� The calculated value of any net energy production shall be credited to 
the customer according to the OAS. 

3. For a customer with TOU Rates: If the customer is a Net Consumer during any discrete 
TOU period reflected within a specific billing cycle, the net kWh consumed during such 
TOU period shall be billed in accordance with applicable TOU period-specific rates / 
FKDUJHV��DV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�2$6� If the customer is a Net Generator during 
any discrete TOU period reflected within a specific billing cycle, any net energy 
SURGXFWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�YDOXHG�LQ�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�2$6� The calculated value 
of such net energy production shall be credited to the customer according to the OAS. 

4. Monthly Settlement and Billing: 

a. All NEM customers will receive a statement in their monthly SDG&E bill 
indicating any accrued charges for electric energy usage during the current billing 
cycle. These charges are due and payable on a monthly basis, in accordance 
with the OAS. A customer who has accrued credits during previous billing cycles 
will see such credits applied against currently applicable charges, reducing 
otherwise applicable charges by an equivalent amount to such credits. Any 
UHPDLQLQJ�EDODQFH�UHIOHFWHG�RQ�HDFK�FXVWRPHU¶V�ELOling statement shall be carried 
forward to subsequent billing cycle(s) until either excess credit is sufficient to 
satisfy the charges or an account true up is performed. :KHQ�D�FXVWRPHU¶V�QHW�
energy production results in an accrued credit balance in excess of currently 
applicable charges, the value of any net energy production during the billing 
cycle (in excess of currently applicable charges) shall be valued at the OAS and 
QRWHG�RQ�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�ELOO��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�TXDQWLW\�RI�DQ\�VXUSOXV�1(0�
production (measured in kWh), and carried over as a bill credit for use in a 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



 

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 10/26/2023 3 

subsequent billing cycle(s). 

5. NEM Generation Credit Refund: At the time of the annual true up, if a customer on 
6'&3¶V�GHIDXOW�PRQWKO\�VHWWOHPHQW�DQG�ELOOLQJ�RSWLRQ�has accumulated any NEM 
generation credits in excess of any currently outstanding charges, those NEM 
generation credits will be carried over as a bill credit for use in the subsequent Relevant 
Period(s) for the benefit of the customer up to the total SDCP charges assessed and/or 
paid on the NEM account during the Relevant Period being trued up. Optional Yearly 
Settlement and Billing: NEM customers may elect to receive yearly settlement and billing 
by notifying SDCP. Customers electing a yearly settlement and billing option will receive 
a statement in their monthly SDG&E bill indicating any accrued SDCP charges or credits 
for electric energy usage or generation during the current billing cycle. Charges are not 
due and payable; rather, the charges or credits are calculated in accordance with the 
OAS and tracked over the course of the Relevant Period. At the end of the Relevant 
Period, any accrued charges in excess of generation credits are due and payable on the 
next bill. If at the end of the relevant period a customer has produced net surplus energy, 
defined as energy generated and exported to the grid in excess of energy consumed by 
the customer, as measured in kWh, the customer will be paid out in accordance with the 
SDCP True up & Cash Out Process set forth at Section 6. 

6. SDCP True Up & Cash Out Processes. 

a. ³True Up´: $W�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�1(0�FXVWRPHU¶V�Relevant Period, SDCP will 
determine whether or not each customer has produced net surplus energy, defined 
as energy generated and exported to the grid in excess of energy consumed by the 
customer, as measured in kWh, over the most recent 12 billing cycles, or the period 
RI�WLPH�H[WHQGLQJ�IURP�WKH�FXVWRPHU¶V�FRPPHQFHPHQW�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�LQ�6'&3¶V�
NEM program through the end of their 12-month Relevant Period, whichever is 
VKRUWHU��WKH�³7UXH 8S�3HULRG´�� If the customer has not produced net surplus energy 
at the end of the applicable Relevant Period during the True Up Period, all NEM 
credits, if any, generated through participation in 6'&3¶V NEM program in excess of 
currently applicable SDCP charges shall be set to zero and any remaining balance 
will be due and payable. 

However, if a customer has produced net surplus energy during their True Up 
Period, then SDCP shall compensate such customer at a Net Surplus Compensation 
(NSC) amount equal to the SDCP NSC Rate per kWh, as defined in section 6.b, 
multiplied by the quantity of net surplus energy produced by the customer during the 
True Up Period, consistent with 6'&3¶V cash out practice. 

b. 6'&3¶V�16&�5DWH: is defined as and HTXDO�WR�WKH�PRQWKO\�6'*	(¶V�16&��ZKLFK�LV�
GHILQHG�E\�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�3XEOLF�8WLOLWLHV�&RPPLVVLRQ�DV�³D�VLPSOH�UROOLQJ�DYHUDJH�RI�
HDFK�XWLOLW\¶V�'HIDXOW�/RDG�$JJUHJDWLRQ�3RLQW��'/$3��SULFH�IURP���D�P��WR���S�P�´��
DQG�³FDOFXODWHG�PRQWKO\�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�KRXUO\�day-ahead electricity market price at 
HDFK�XWLOLW\¶V�'/$3�SULFH�SXEOLVKHG�RQ�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�,QGHSHQGHQW�6\VWHP�2SHUDWRU�
(CAISO) Open Access Same-Time Information System (OASIS,) and ending the 
WZHQWLHWK�GD\�RI�HDFK�PRQWK´��of the customer true up month plus $0.0075/kWh. 

c. ³Cash Out and Payment´: $W�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�FXVWRPHU¶V�UHOHYDQW�SHULRG, any current 
NEM customer who is a net generator with an accrued Net Surplus Compensation 
equal to or greater than $100, as determined during the applicable true up process, 
will be sent a direct payment by check per account per relevant period. Net Surplus 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



 

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 10/26/2023 4 

Compensation less than $100 will be rolled over into the next relevant period and 
used to offset future charges. In either scenario, customers will have an equivalent 
credit removed from their NEM account balance at the time of check issuance or 
rollover. All NEM accounts will be reset to zero kWh upon true up. 

Payments will be released up to 60 days after true up billing. Checks will expire 90 
days after issuance. If checks expire or are returned to SDCP, customers may 
request the one-time reissuance of a check and SDCP will make a reasonable effort 
WR�UHLVVXH�WKH�FKHFN�ZLWKLQ����GD\V�RI�D�FXVWRPHU¶V�UHTXHVW� 

d. ³Aggregated NEM´: Pursuant to California Public Utilities Code section 
�����K�����%���DJJUHJDWHG�1(0�FXVWRPHUV�DUH�³SHUPDQHQWO\�LQHOLJLEOH�WR�UHFHLYH�QHW�
VXUSOXV�HOHFWULFLW\�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�´ Therefore, any excess accrued credits over the 
course of a year under an aggregated NEM account are ineligible for SDCP¶V�&DVK 
Out as described in Section 5. All other NEM rules apply to aggregated NEM 
accounts. 

G. ACCOUNT CLOSURES 
Customers who close their electric account through SDG&E, opt out of SDCP and return to 
bundled service, or move outside of the SDCP service area prior to the end of their Relevant 
Period ZLOO�EH�WUXHG�XS�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�6'&3¶V�1(0�SROLF\��&XVWRPHUs that have produced net 
surplus energy, will be paid out in accordance with the SDCP true up & cash out processes. 
Payments will be released within 60-90 days after final billing to allow for any usage 
revisions and/or adjustments from SDG&E. Checks will expire 90 days after issuance. If 
checks expire or are returned to SDCP, customers may request the one-time reissuance of 
a check and SDCP will make a reasonable effort to reissue the check within 30 days of a 
FXVWRPHU¶V�UHTXHVW��,I�FXVWRPHU�GLG�QRW�produce net surplus energy, as measured in kWh, 
they will not receive a direct payment. 

SDCP reserves the right to work with customers on a case-by-case basis to transfer NEM 
credits.  

 

H. SDG&E NEM SERVICES 
Customers are subject to the conditions and billing procedures of SDG&E for services 
outside of electric generation, as described in SDG&E¶V�applicable NEM tariffs and options 
addressing NEM service. Customers should be advised that while SDCP may settle out 
balances for generation on a monthly basis, SDG&E will continue to assess charges for 
delivery, transmission, and other services they provide. Customers are encouraged to 
review SDG&E¶V�PRVW�XS-to-date NEM tariffs, which are available at www.sdge.com.  

I. RETURN TO SDG&E BUNDLED SERVICE 
Customers with NEM service may opt out and return to SDG&E bundled service at any time. 
SDCP will perform a true up of the FXVWRPHU¶V account in accordance with Section 6, at the 
time of return to SDG&E bundled service, and customers will be subject to SDG&E¶V�WKHQ�
current rates, terms and conditions of service. For details, please visit www.sdge.com. 

J. MISCELLANEOUS 

http://www.sdge.com/
http://www.sdge.com/
Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



 

SDCP Net Energy Metering Program Policy | Rev. 10/26/2023 5 

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of SDCP or their designee may, in their discretion,  
reserve the right to work with customers on a case-by-case basis to transfer NEM and NSC 
credits and/or otherwise deviate from the process specified in this policy for reasons 
including but not limited to cases of unforeseeable events, inconsistent receivable data from 
SDG&E, exigent circumstances, SDG&E bill presentment limitations or customer hardship. 
 

Xiomalys Crespo
DRAFT



 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
AB – Assembly Bill - An Assembly Bill is a piece of legislation that is introduced in the Assembly. In 
other words, the Assembly, rather than the Senate, is the house of origin in the legislature for the 
legislation. In California, it is common for legislation to be referred to by its house of origin number (such 
as, AB 32) even once it becomes law. 
 
AL - Advice Letter - An Advice Letter is a request by a CPUC jurisdictional entity for Commission 
approval, authorization, or other relief.  
 
ALJ – Administrative Law Judge - ALJs preside over CPUC cases to develop the evidentiary record 

and draft proposed decisions for Commission action. 
 
ARB – Air Resources Board -  The California Air Resources Board (CARB or ARB) is the "clean air 

agency" in the government of California. CARB is charged with protecting the public from the harmful 

effects of air pollution and developing programs and actions to fight climate change. 
 
AReM – Alliance for Retail Energy Markets - a not for profit corporation that advocates for 

continued development of successful customer choice in retail energy markets and provides a focused 

voice for competitive energy retailers and their customers in selected public policy forums on the state 

level. AREM represented direct access providers such as Constellation NewEnergy and Direct Energy. 

 
BayREN - Bay Area Regional Energy Network - BayREN offers region-wide energy programs, 

services and resources to members of the public by promoting energy efficient buildings, reducing 

carbon emissions and building government capacity. 

 
CAISO – California Independent System Operator - a non-profit independent system operator 
that oversees the operation of the California bulk electric power system, transmission lines and 
electricity market generated and transmitted by its members (~80% of California’s electric flow). 
Its stated mission is to “operate the grid reliably and efficiently, provide fair and open transmission 
access, promote environmental stewardship and facilitate effective markets and promote 
infrastructure development.” CAISO is regulated by FERC and governed by a five-member 
governing board appointed by the governor.  
 
CALCCA – California Community Choice Association – Association made up of Community 
Choice Aggregation (CCA) groups which represents the interests of California’s community choice 
electricity providers.  
 
CALSEIA – California Solar Energy Industries -  CALSEIA represents more than 200 companies doing 
solar-related business in California, including manufacturers, distributors, installation contractors, 
consultants, and educators. Members' annual dues support professional staff and a lobbyist who 
represent the common interests of California's solar industry at the Legislature, Governor's Office, and 
state and local agencies. 
 



 

 
CALSLA – California City County Street Light Association - statewide association representing cities, 
counties and towns before the CPUC that is committed to maintaining fair and equitable street light 
electric rates and facilities charges, and disseminating street light related information. 
 
CAM – Cost Allocation Mechanism - the cost recovery mechanism to cover procurement costs incurred 
in serving the central procurement function.  
 
CARB – California Air Resources Board – The CARB is charged with protecting the public from 
the harmful effects of air pollution and developing programs and actions to fight climate change in 
California.  
 
CARE – California Alternative Rates for Energy - A State program for low-income households 
that provides a 30% discount on monthly energy bills and a 20% discount on natural gas bills. 
CARE is funded through a rate surcharge paid by all other utility customers. 
 
CBE – Communities for a Better Environment - environmental justice organization that was 
founded in 1978. The mission of CBE is to build people’s power in California’s communities of color 
and low-income communities to achieve environmental health and justice by preventing and 
reducing pollution and building green, healthy and sustainable communities and environments.  
 
CCA – Community Choice Aggregator - A community choice aggregator, sometimes referred 
to as community choice aggregation,  allows local governments to procure power on behalf of their 
residents, businesses, and municipal accounts from an alternative supplier while still receiving 
transmission and distribution service from their existing utility provider. CCAs are an attractive 
option for communities that want more local control over their electricity sources, more green 
power than is offered by the default utility, and/or lower electricity prices. By aggregating demand, 
communities gain leverage to negotiate better rates with competitive suppliers and choose greener 
power sources. 
 
CCSF – City and County of San Francisco - The City and County of San Francisco often engage 
in joint advocacy before the CPUC. San Francisco operates CleanPowerSF, a CCA. 
 
CEC – California Energy Commission - the primary energy policy and planning agency for 
California, whose core responsibilities include advancing state energy policy, achieving energy 
efficiency, investing in energy innovation, developing renewable energy, transforming 
transportation, overseeing energy infrastructure and preparing for energy emergencies. 
 
CEE – Coalition for Energy Efficiency - non-profit comprised of US and Canadian energy 
efficiency administrators working together to accelerate the development and availability of energy 
efficient products and services.   
 
CLECA – California Large Energy Consumers Association - an organization of large, high load 
factor industrial customers located throughout the state; the members are in the cement, steel, industrial 
gas, pipeline, beverage, cold storage, food packaging, and mining industries, and share the fact that 
electricity costs comprise a significant portion of their costs of production. Some members are bundled 
customers, others are Direct Access (DA) customers, and some are served by Community Choice 
Aggregators (CCAs); a few members have onsite renewable generation.  
 
CPUC – California Public Utility Commission - state agency that regulates privately owned 
electric, natural gas, telecommunications, water, railroad, rail transit, and passenger 
transportation companies, in addition to authorizing video franchises. 
 



 

C&I – Commercial and Industrial – Business customers. C&I customers generally consume 
much higher volumes of electricity and gas. Many utilities segment their C&I customers by energy 
consumption (small, medium and large). 
 
CP – Compliance Period – Time period to become RPS compliant, set by the CPUC (California 
Public Utilities Commission)  
 
DA – Direct Access – An option that allows eligible customers to purchase their electricity directly 
from third party providers known as Electric Service Providers (ESP).  
 
DA Cap – the maximum amount of electric usage that may be allocated to Direct Access customers 
in California, or more specifically, within an Investor-Owned Utility service territory.  
 
DACC – Direct Access Customer Coalition a regulatory advocacy group comprised of 
educational, governmental, commercial and industrial customers that utilize direct access for all 
or a portion of their electrical energy requirements 
 
DA Lottery – a random drawing by which DA waitlist customers become eligible to enroll in DA 
service under the currently-applicable Direct Access Cap.  
 
DA Waitlist – customers that have officially registered their interest in becoming a DA customer 
but are not yet able to enroll in service because of DA cap limitations.  
 
DAC – Disadvantaged Community - Disadvantaged communities refers to the areas 

throughout California which most suffer from a combination of economic, health, and 

environmental burdens. These burdens include poverty, high unemployment, air and water 

pollution, presence of hazardous wastes as well as high incidence of asthma and heart disease. 

One way that the state identifies these areas is by collecting and analyzing information from 

communities all over the state. CalEnviroScreen, an analytical tool created by the California 

Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA), combines different types of census tract-specific 

information into a score to determine which communities are the most burdened or 

"disadvantaged." 

 
DASR – Direct Access Service Request – Request submitted by C&I customers to become direct 
access eligible.  
 
Demand - The rate at which electric energy is delivered to or by a system or part of a system, 
generally expressed in kilowatts (kW), megawatts (MW), or gigawatts (GW), at a given instant or 
averaged over any designated interval of time. Demand should not be confused with Load or 
Energy.  
 
DER – Distributed Energy Resource – A small-scale physical or virtual asset (e.g. EV charger, 
smart thermostat, behind-the-meter solar/storage, energy efficiency) that operates locally and is 
connected to a larger power grid at the distribution level.  
 
Distribution - The delivery of electricity to the retail customer’s home or business through low 
voltage distribution lines.  
 
DLAP – Default Load Aggregation Point – In the CAISO’s electricity optimization model, DLAP 
is the node at which all bids for demand should be submitted and settled.  
 



 

DR – Demand Response - An opportunity for consumers to play a significant role in the operation 
of the electric grid by reducing or shifting their electricity usage during peak periods in response 
to time-based rates or other forms of financial incentives.  
 
DRP – Distributed Resource Plans - plans that are required by statute that are intended to 
identify optimal locations for the deployment of distributed resources. 
 
DWR – Department of Water Resources – DWR manages California’s water resources, 
systems, and infrastructure in a responsible, sustainable way.  
 
ECR – Enhanced Community Renewable - An IOU program that reflects the "Community Solar" 
model of renewable energy purchasing. Customers sign up to purchase a portion of a local solar 
project directly from a Developer at a level that meets at least 25% of their monthly electricity 
demand, but up to 100%. The customer will pay the Developer for the subscribed output, and 
receive a credit on their utility bill that reflects their enrollment level. 
 
ED – Energy Division - The CPUC's Energy Division develops and administers energy policy and 
programs to serve the public interest, advise the Commission, and ensure compliance with the 
Commission decisions and statutory mandates. 
 
EE – Energy Efficiency- the use of less energy to perform the same task or produce the same 
result. Energy-efficient homes and buildings use less energy to heat, cool, and run appliances and 
electronics, and energy-efficient manufacturing facilities use less energy. 
 
ELCC – Effective Load Carrying Capacity – The additional load met by an incremental generator 
while maintaining the same level of system reliability. For solar and wind resources the ELCC is 
the amount of capacity which can be counted for Resource Adequacy purposes.  
 
EPIC – Electric Program Investment Charge – The EPIC program was created by the CPUC to 
support investments in clean energy technologies that provide benefits to the electricity ratepayers 
of PG&E, San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E), and Southern California Edison Company 
(SCE)  
 
ERRA – Energy Resource Recovery Account – ERRA proceedings are used to determine fuel 
and purchased power costs which can be recovered in rates. The utilities do not earn a rate of 
return on these costs, and only recover actual costs. The costs are forecast for the year ahead. If 
the actual costs are lower than forecast, then the utility gives money back, and vice versa.  
 
ES – Energy Storage - the capture of energy produced at one time for use at a later time to 
reduce imbalances between energy demand and energy production. 
 
ESA – Energy Storage Agreement - means a battery services contract,  a capacity contract, 
demand response contract or similar agreement. 
 
ESP – Energy Service Provider - An energy entity that provides service to a retail or end-use 
customer.  
 
EV – Electric Vehicle - a vehicle that uses one or more electric motors for propulsion. 
 
 
FCR – Flexible Capacity Requirements  - “Flexible capacity need” is defined as the quantity of 
resources needed by the CAISO to manage grid reliability during the greatest three-hour 
continuous ramp in each month. Resources will be considered as “flexible capacity” if they can 
sustain or increase output, or reduce ramping needs, during the hours of “flexible need.” “FCR” 

https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/fcr


 

means the flexible capacity requirements established for LSEs by the CPUC pursuant to the CPUC 
Decisions. 
 
GHG – Greenhouse gas - water vapor, carbon dioxide, tropospheric ozone, nitrous oxide, 
methane, and chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs). A gas that causes the atmosphere to trap heat radiating 
from the earth. The most common GHG is Carbon Dioxide, though Methane and others have this 
effect as well.  
 
GRC – General Rate Case – Proceedings used to address the costs of operating and maintaining 
the utility system and the allocation of those costs among customer classes. For California’s three 
large IOUs, the GRCs are parsed into two phases. Phase I of a GRC determines the total amount 
the utility is authorized to collect, while Phase II determines the share of the cost each customer 
class is responsible and the rate schedules for each class. Each large electric utility files a GRC 
application every three years for review by the Public Advocates Office and interested parties and 
approval by the CPUC.  
 
GTSR – Green Tariff Shared Renewables - The GTSR program enables customers to receive 50 

to 100 percent of their electricity demand from renewable sources. The GTSR program has two 

components: the Green Tariff (GT) component and the Enhanced Community Renewables (ECR) 

component.  Through GT, a customer may pay the difference between their current generation charge 

and the cost of procuring 50 to 100 percent renewables.  With ECR, a customer agrees to purchase a 

share of a community renewable (typically solar) project directly from a developer, and in exchange will 

receive a credit from their utility for the customer’s avoided generation procurement.   
 
GWh – Gigawatt-hour - The unit of energy equal to that expended in one hour at a rate of one 
billion watts. One GWh equals 1,000 megawatt-hours.  
 
ICA – Integration Capacity Analysis  - The enhanced integrated capacity and locational net 
benefit analysis quantifies the capability of the system to integrate Distributed Energy Resources 
(DERs) within the distribution system. Results are dependent on the most limiting element of the 
various power system criteria such as thermal ratings, power quality, system protection limits and 
safety standards of existing equipment. 
 
IDER – Integrated Distributed Energy Resources – A CPUC proceeding that aims to more 
effectively coordinate the integration of demand-side resources in order to better meet customer 
and grid needs, while enabling California to attain its greenhouse gas reduction goals. 
 
IDSM – Integrated Demand-Side Management - an approach that joins together all the 
resources utilities have at their disposal to plan, generate and supply electricity in the most efficient 
manner possible. 
 
IEP – Independent Energy Producers – California’s oldest and leading nonprofit trade 
association, representing the interest of developers and operators of independent energy facilities 
and independent power marketers.  
 
IMD – Independent Marketing Division - Under state law, IOUs are prohibited from lobbying 
or marketing on community choice unless the IOU forms an independent marketing division funded 
by shareholders rather than ratepayers. SDG&E’ and its parent company Sempra were permitted 
by the CPUC to create such an independent marketing division, which allowed SDG&E to lobby 
against plans to create a CCA program. 
 
IOU – Investor-Owned Utility – A private electricity and natural gas provider, such as SDG&E, 
PG&E or SCE, which are the three largest IOUs in California.  
 

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/the-flexible
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/established
https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/lses
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/pursuant-to-the
https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/cpuc-decisions
https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/cpuc-decisions


 

IRP – Integrated Resource Plan – A plan which outlines an electric utility’s resource needs in 
order to meet expected electricity demand long-term.  
 
kW – Kilowatt – Measure of power where power (watts) = voltage (volts) x amperage (amps) 
and 1 kW = 1000 watts  
 
kWh – Kilowatt-hour – This is a measure of consumption. It is the amount of electricity that is 
used over some period of time, typically a one-month period for billing purposes. Customers are 
charged a rate per kWh of electricity used.  
 
LCE – Lancaster Choice Energy - the CCA that serves the City of Lancaster, California. 
 
LCFS – Low Carbon Fuel Standard – A CARB program designed to encourage the use of cleaner 
low-carbon fuels in California, encourage the production of those fuels, and therefore, reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
LCR – Local (RA) Capacity Requirements – The amount of Resource Adequacy capacity 
required to be demonstrated in a specific location or zone.  
 
LMP – Locational Marginal Price – Each generator unit and load pocket is assigned a node in 
the CAISO optimization model. The model will assign a LMP to the node in both the day- ahead 
and real time market as it balances the system using the least cost. The LMP is comprised of three 
components: the marginal cost of energy, congestion and losses. The LMP is used to financially 
settle transactions in the CAISO.  
 
LNBA – Locational Net Benefits Analysis - a cost-benefit analysis of distributed resources that 
incorporates location-specific net benefits to the electric grid. 
 
Load - An end use device or customer that receives power from an energy delivery system. Load 
should not be confused with Demand, which is the measure of power that a load receives or 
requires. See Demand.  
 
LSE – Load-serving Entity – Entities that have been granted authority by state, local law or 
regulation to serve their own load directly through wholesale energy purchases and have chosen 
to exercise that authority.  
 
LTPP – Long-Term Procurement Rulemaking - This is an “umbrella” proceeding to consider, 

in an integrated fashion, all of the Commission’s electric procurement policies and programs.  
 
MCE – Marin Clean Energy - the first CCA in California that began serving customers in 2010. 

They serve customers in Contra Costa, Marin, Napa and Solano counties in Northern California. 

 
MEO – Marketing Education and Outreach - a term generally used to describe various 

strategies to inform customers, such as to motivate consumers to take action on energy 

efficiency or conservation measures and change their behavior. 

 
MW – Megawatt – measure of power. A megawatt equals 1,000 kilowatts or 1 million watts.  
 
MWH – Megawatt-hour – measure of energy 
 
NAESCO – National Association of Energy Service Companies - – an advocacy and 
accreditation organization for energy service companies (ESCOs). Energy Service Companies 



 

contract with private and public sector energy users to provide cost-effective energy efficiency 
retrofits across a wide spectrum of client facilities. 
 
NBC – Non-Bypassable Charge - fees that are paid on every kilowatt-hour of electricity that is 
consumed from the grid. These charges can be used to fund things like energy assistance programs 
for low-income households and energy efficiency programs. These charges apply even if customers 
buy grid-supplied power from an outside power company such as a CCA.  
 
NDA – Non-Disclosure Agreement - a contract by which one or more parties agree not to disclose 
confidential information that they have shared with each other.  
 
NEM – Net Energy Metering – A program in which solar customers receive credit for excess 
electricity generated by solar panels.  
 
NRDC – Natural Resources Defense Council - non-profit international environmental advocacy 
group. 
 
NP-15 – North Path 15 – NP-15 is a CAISO pricing zone usually used to approximate wholesale 
electricity prices in northern California in PG&E’s service territory. 
 
OIR – Order Instituting Rulemaking - A procedural document that is issued by the CPUC to 
start a formal proceeding. A draft OIR is issued for comment by interested parties and made final 
by vote of the five Commissioners of the CPUC.  
 
OSC – Order to Show Cause - order requiring an individual or entity to explain, justify, or prove 
something. 
 
ORA – Office of Ratepayer Advocates - the independent consumer advocate within the CPUC, 
now called Public Advocates office. 
 
PA – Program Administrator (for EE Business Plans) IOUs and local government agencies 

authorized to implement CPUC-directed Energy Efficiency programs. 

 
PCE – Peninsula Clean Energy Authority - CCA serving San Mateo County and all 20 of its 

cities and towns as well as the City of Los Banos. 
 
PCC1 – RPS Portfolio Content Category 1 – Bundled renewables where the energy and REC 
are dynamically scheduled into a California Balancing Authority (CBA) such as the CAISO. Also 
known as “in-state” renewables.  
 
PCC2 – RPS Portfolio Content Category 2 – Bundled renewables where the energy and REC 
are from out-of-state and not dynamically scheduled to a CBA.  
 
PCC3 – RPS Portfolio Content Category 3 – Unbundled REC  
 
PCIA or “exit fee” - Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA) is an “exit fee” based on 
stranded costs of utility generation set by the California Public Utilities Commission. It is calculated 
annually and assessed to customers of CCAs and paid to the IOU that lost those customers as a 
result of the formation of a CCA. 
 
PCL – Power Content Label – A user-friendly way of displaying information to California 
consumers about the energy resources used to generate the electricity they sell, as required by 
AB 162 (Statue of 2009) and Senate Bill 1305 (Statutes of 1997).  



 

 
PD – Proposed Decision – A procedural document in a CPUC Rulemaking that is formally 
commented on by parties to the proceeding. A PD is a precursor to a final Decision voted on by 
the five Commissioners of the CPUC.  
 
PG&E – Pacific Gas & Electric - the IOU that serves 16 million people over a 70,000 square mile 
service area in Northern California. 
 
PHC – Prehearing Conference - CPUC hearing to discuss the scope of a proceeding among other 
matters. Interested stakeholders can request party status during these. 
 
Pnode – Pricing Node – In the CAISO optimization model, it is a point where a physical injection 
or withdrawal of energy is modeled and for which a LMP is calculated.  
 
PPA – Power Purchase Agreement – A contract used to purchase the energy, capacity and 
attributes from a renewable resource project.  
 
PRP – Priority Review Project - transportation electrification pilot projects approved by the 
CPUC pursuant to SB 350. 
 
PRRR – Progress on Residential Rate Reform – Pursuant to a CPUC decision, the IOUs must 
submit to the CPUC and parties periodic updates on the progress of their efforts to assist customers 
with residential rate design changes related to rate reform, including tier collapse and transition 
to a default time of use rate. 
 
PUC – Public Utilities Code - California statute that contains 33 Divisions, and the range of topics 
within this Code includes natural gas restructuring, private energy producers, telecommunication 
services, and specific municipal utility districts and transit authorities. Primary statute for 
governance of utilities as well as CCAs in California. 
 
PURPA – Public Utilities Regulatory Policy Act - federal statute passed by Congress to 
encourage fuel diversity via alternative energy sources and to introduce competition into the 
electric sector.  It was meant to promote energy conservation (reduce demand) and promote 
greater use of domestic energy and renewable energy (increase supply). The law was created in 
response to the 1973 energy crisis. 
 
RA – Resource Adequacy - Under its Resource Adequacy (RA) program, the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) requires load-serving entities—both independently owned utilities and 
electric service providers—to demonstrate in both monthly and annual filings that they have 
purchased capacity commitments of no less than 115% of their peak loads.  
 
RAM – Renewables Auction Mechanism - a procurement program the Investor-owned 

Utilities (IOUs) may use to procure RPS eligible generation. The IOUs may use RAM to satisfy 

authorized procurement needs, for example, system Resource Adequacy needs, local Resource 

Adequacy needs, RPS needs, reliability needs, Local Capacity Requirements, Green Tariff 

Shared Renewables needs, and any need arising from Commission or legislative mandates. 
 
RE – Renewable Energy - Energy from a source that is not depleted when used, such as wind 
or solar power.  
 
REC - Renewable Energy Certificate - A REC is the property right to the environmental benefits 
associated with generating renewable electricity. For instance, homeowners who generate solar 



 

electricity are credited with 1 solar REC for every MWh of electricity they produce. Utilities obligated 
to fulfill an RPS requirement can purchase these RECs on the open market.  
 
RES-BCT – Renewables Energy Self-Generation Bill Credit Transfer - This program enables 
local governments and universities to share generation credits from a system located on one 
government-owned property with billing accounts at other government-owned properties.  The 
system size limit under RES-BCT is 5 MW, and bill credits are applied at the generation-only portion 
of a customer's retail rate. 
 
RFO – Request for Offers a competitive procurement process used by organizations to solicit 
the submission of proposals from interested parties in response to a scope of services. 
 
RPS - Renewable Portfolio Standard - Law that requires CA utilities and other load serving 
entities (including CCAs) to provide an escalating percentage of CA qualified renewable power 
(culminating at 33% by 2020) in their annual energy portfolio.  
 
SB – Senate Bill - a piece of legislation that is introduced in the Senate. In other words, the Senate, 
rather than the Assembly, is the house of origin in the legislature for the legislation.  
 
SCE – Southern California Edison - the large IOU that serves the Los Angeles and Orange County 
area. 
 
SCP – Sonoma Clean Power Authority - CCA serving Sonoma County and surrounding areas in 
Northern California. 
  
SDG&E – San Diego Gas & Electric - the IOU that serves San Diego county, they own the 
infrastructure that delivers SDCP energy to customers. 
 
SGIP – Self-Generation Incentive Program – A program which provides incentives to support 
existing, new, and emerging distributed energy resources (storage, wind turbines, waste heat to 
power technologies, etc.)  
 
SUE – Super User Electric - electric surcharge that’s intended to penalize consumers for 
excessive energy use. 
 
SVCE – Silicon Valley Clean Energy - CCA serving Silicon Valley Area. 
 
TCR EPS Protocol – The Climate Registry Electric Power Sector Protocol – Online tools and 
resources provided by The Climate Registry to assist organizations to measure, report, and reduce 
carbon emissions.  
 
TE – Transportation Electrification - For the transportation sector, electrification means 
replacing fossil fuels with electricity as the means of powering light-duty vehicles, medium- and 
heavy-duty trucks, and buses. The primary goal is to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
and, ultimately, contribute to mitigating the effects of climate change on the planet. 
 
Time-of-Use (TOU) Rates — The pricing of delivered electricity based on the estimated cost of 
electricity during a particular time-block. Time-of-use rates are usually divided into three or four 
time-blocks per 24 hour period (on-peak, mid-peak, off-peak and sometimes super off-peak) and 
by seasons of the year (summer and winter). Real time pricing differs from TOU rates in that it is 
based on actual (as opposed to forecasted) prices that may fluctuate many times a day and are 
weather sensitive, rather than varying with a fixed schedule.  
 



 

TM – Tree Mortality -  refers to the death of forest trees and provides a measure of forest health. 
In the context of energy, the CPUC is tasked with utilizing its authority to extend contracts and 
take actions to authorize new contracts on bioenergy facilities that receive feedstock from high 
hazard zones. 
 
TURN – The Utility Reform Network - A ratepayer advocacy group charged with ensuring that 
California IOUs implement just and reasonable rates.  
 
Unbundled RECs - Renewable energy certificates that verify a purchase of a MWH unit of 
renewable power where the actual power and the certificate are “unbundled” and sold to different 
buyers.  
 
VPP – Virtual Power Plant – A cloud-based network that leverages an aggregation of distributed 
energy resources (DERs) to shift energy demand or provide services to the grid. For example, 
thousands of EV chargers could charge at a slower speed and hundreds of home batteries could 
discharge to the grid during a demand peak to significantly reduce the procurement of traditional 
supply resources. 
 
VAMO – Voluntary Allocation, Market Offer - the process for SDG&E to allocate a proportional share of 
their renewable portfolio to SDCP and other LSEs within the service territory. 

 


	October 12, 2023
	5:30 p.m.

